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          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We welcome

          3  everyone this morning, and it is wonderful to see so

          4  many people here. We are really looking forward to

          5  your testimony. That great lady at the entrance of

          6  our City who says give me your tired, your worn,

          7  your poor, no institution reflects the truth of that

          8  statement more than the City University, from the

          9  time of its inception it has brought immigrants,

         10  trained them, carried them on to become part of our

         11  society, and trained them in a magnificent way, and

         12  if we look back at the history of New York City, we

         13  will see that practically all of us were immigrant

         14  beginnings and the City University has been that

         15  opportunity for us to step in and take our full

         16  place in America. And so, today's topic is one that

         17  we have been working on and looking forward to

         18  holding, and I am delighted that we are going to be

         19  able to really delve into how CUNY has accomplished

         20  this great miracle over these years.

         21                 Our first speaker will be Deputy

         22  Chancellor, Vice Chancellor Louise Mirrer, who

         23  clearly is one of the stalwarts, she really is

         24  extremely knowledgable of the University. She is

         25  sitting in today for the Chancellor who could not be
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          2  with us, and we will nonetheless get all the

          3  information that we need and get a good idea of what

          4  CUNY is all about when it comes to training our

          5  students whose English is not their very first

          6  language.

          7                 Ms. Mirrer, thank you.

          8                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Thank you

          9  very much, Chair Marshall, Council Member Perkins.

         10                 I am Louise Mirrer, Vice Chancellor

         11  for Academic Affairs at the City University of New

         12  York.

         13                 Sitting with me is John Mogulescu,

         14  who is University Dean for Adult and Continuing

         15  Education.

         16                 I very much appreciate the

         17  opportunity to testify before you today on the

         18  opportunities that CUNY offers its immigrant

         19  students.

         20                 As you know, for generations of

         21  immigrants CUNY has been a vehicle for upward social

         22  economic and educational mobility. In the 1920s and

         23  '30s, CUNY fulfilled its mission by educating the

         24  children of immigrants who arrived in New York and

         25  the late 19th and early 20th centuries, and while
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          2  the countries of origins have changed over the

          3  years, in concert with changing US immigration law,

          4  worldwide economic and political conditions and the

          5  economy of New York City, the trend surely

          6  continues.

          7                 In a report issued by the University

          8  in the winter of 1995 entitled Immigration,

          9  Migration and the CUNY student of the future, it was

         10  projected that by the Year 2000 more than half of

         11  CUNY first time freshman would be students who were

         12  born abroad or in the commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

         13                 With the Year 2000 just around the

         14  corner, it seems likely that this projection will be

         15  proven to be accurate.

         16                 The most recent complete study of

         17  CUNY's immigrant population shows that by the Fall

         18  of 1997, 50 percent of first time community college

         19  freshman were born outside of the US mainland. At

         20  senior colleges the percentage was 46.5 percent.

         21                 Where did these students come from?

         22  About 15 percent came from the Dominican Republic,

         23  eight percent came from Jamaica, seven percent from

         24  the former Soviet Union, seven percent from Guyana,

         25  six percent from Haiti and 5.5 percent from China.
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          2  All told, CUNY students come from 188 countries,

          3  literally from all over the world.

          4                 Almost half of these same freshman

          5  reported that their native language is not English.

          6  In all they speak 162 different languages, with

          7  Spanish, Chinese and Russian those most heavily

          8  represented.

          9                 This means of course that all of

         10  these speakers of foreign languages are either

         11  bilingual or on their way to becoming so.

         12                 In a competitive job market and an

         13  increasingly smaller world, the ability to function

         14  effectively in more than one culture and to speak,

         15  read and write a second language will give CUNY

         16  graduates an important edge.

         17                 CUNY's immigrant student population

         18  has much to offer, indeed it always has.

         19                 CUNY graduates who are immigrants

         20  have built New York, taught its children, won Nobel

         21  Prizes and founded major international corporations.

         22  They include Arno Penzias, Nobel Prize winner, Judge

         23  Sam Rifkin, your very own Councilman Guillermo

         24  Linares, Supreme Court Justice Felix Frankfurter,

         25  Andrew Grove, founder of Intel, Colin Channer,
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          2  acclaimed author, Charles Wang, founder of Computer

          3  Associates. These are names that are easily

          4  recognized. And there are tens of thousands of

          5  others, immigrant graduates, educated at CUNY, whose

          6  contributions are interwoven in the fabric of the

          7  City, the State and the nation.

          8                 Students for whom English is not a

          9  first language do not constitute a single,

         10  homogenous population. Not only do they come from

         11  virtually every corner of the world, but they have

         12  very diverse backgrounds and educational

         13  experiences.

         14                 Some students educated in their

         15  native countries are highly proficient in reading,

         16  writing, and learning in their native language.

         17                 They just need to learn more English.

         18  Others, though, have experienced poor or interrupted

         19  education and have done little college preparatory

         20  work in any language. Adding basic academic learning

         21  needs to the already daunting task of learning the

         22  English language.

         23                 In recognition of and in response to

         24  this diversity of needs, CUNY offers immigrant

         25  students a wide range of programs developed and
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          2  taught by an exceptionally talented and committed

          3  faculty.

          4                 The initiative that the University

          5  has pioneered represent the cutting edge of practice

          6  in the discipline of English as a second language,

          7  and they have proven to be effective.

          8                 University-wide data on the progress

          9  of students who enter the University as ESL students

         10  are impressive.

         11                 This morning I would like to give you

         12  a flavor of both some of the special initiatives

         13  offered to immigrant students at CUNY, as well as

         14  the day-in day-out good sound instruction that is

         15  practiced on our campuses.

         16                 Offerings at CUNY range from

         17  intensive non-credit programs to a range of

         18  innovative credit-bearing initiatives to a special

         19  project designed to assist immigrant students with

         20  citizenship and naturalization.

         21                 You will have a chance to hear about

         22  some of these programs and initiatives in greater

         23  detail in a few moments.

         24                 I will begin by mentioning the CUNY

         25  Language Immersion Program. This recently developed
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          2  program which operates on seven campuses of the

          3  University, soon to be eight, including all six

          4  community colleges and two four-year colleges,

          5  offers ESL students who have been accepted to the

          6  University the option of deferring their enrollment

          7  in favor of concentrating on their English language

          8  studies for 25 hours a week for up to one year.

          9                 By deferring their enrollment,

         10  students retain their financial aid allocations to

         11  be used when they actually begin to take credit

         12  bearing courses leading to graduation.

         13                 A more complete description of this

         14  program will follow my remarks.

         15                 Next I would like to highlight some

         16  examples of innovative programming offered to

         17  immigrant students enrolled in degree programs.

         18                 At virtually every campus of the

         19  University, programs are being developed which will

         20  allow ESL students to link their English language

         21  courses with actual content courses in the academic

         22  discipline with the support of tutoring and

         23  computer-assisted instruction. You will be hearing

         24  how this approach is developed and carried out at

         25  Kingsborough Community College and at John Jay

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  College.

          3                 An additional instructional program

          4  at CUNY that I would like to mention is the

          5  University Skills Immersion Program.  Students who

          6  fail one or more CUNY skills assessment tests may

          7  choose to enroll in this free program during the

          8  summer or the intercession between the fall and

          9  spring terms.

         10                 The program is intended for entering

         11  freshmen and serves both immigrant and non-immigrant

         12  students. A recently completed report shows that

         13  students who participate in this program reap a

         14  number of advantages, including higher grades, more

         15  rapid degree progress and ultimately higher

         16  graduation rates.

         17                 Now I would like to take you out of

         18  the classroom for a minute and tell you about the

         19  CUNY citizenship and naturalization project.

         20                 Through this project a range of

         21  campus activities are offered to advise and assist

         22  immigrant students who are going through the

         23  citizenship and naturalization process. Student and

         24  staff volunteers working with a designated campus

         25  expert and law school interns are involved in
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          2  providing counseling, guidance and when necessary,

          3  referral to appropriate outside resources.

          4                 By the end of the project's first

          5  three semesters of operation, that is as of May

          6  1998, over 5,000 students and staff have completed

          7  their applications for citizenship.

          8                 The project's second annual

          9  conference on immigration law and policy, which last

         10  year attracted over 200 participants will be held

         11  this March.

         12                 Finally, I would like to briefly

         13  mention just a few other ways in which CUNY in

         14  collaboration with other agencies serves the City's

         15  population of immigrants.

         16                 In collaboration with the Board of

         17  Education, 300 13-year-old youngsters who are about

         18  to enter high school come to CUNY for an intensive

         19  summer English language course -- and I do mean

         20  intensive.  Instead of spending their summer at the

         21  park or the beach, these highly motivated students

         22  spend five days a week, six hours a day, for six

         23  weeks preparing themselves for success in high

         24  school. They read two full novels, write multiple

         25  drafts of compositions, learn how to do Internet
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          2  research and complete an Internet project and take

          3  four trips to the museums of the City.

          4                 We look forward in just a few years

          5  to welcoming these students back to CUNY.

          6                 In collaboration also with the Board

          7  of Education, we work closely with LaGuardia

          8  International High School, which as you know is at

          9  the forefront of innovative high school education

         10  for limited English-speaking immigrant high school

         11  students.

         12                 These students receive outstanding

         13  academic instruction. They participate in

         14  internships all over the City, they learn English,

         15  they come to CUNY while prepared for the demands of

         16  college and they succeed.

         17                 Through CUNY's Division of Adult and

         18  Continuing Education, thousands of New York City

         19  adult immigrants each year come to special classes

         20  designed to teach them the basic literacy and

         21  English language skills they need to help them get a

         22  job, or a better job, to participate more fully in

         23  their children's education, reading to them and

         24  helping them with their homework, and to access

         25  further education and training programs to ensure a
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          2  better future for themselves and for their families.

          3                 In the past year, CUNY has undertaken

          4  a unique collaboration with the New York City Police

          5  Department. This collaboration has resulted in a

          6  project called Streetwise: Language, culture and

          7  police work in New York City, which provides

          8  additional training in language and cultural

          9  diversity to the graduates of the Police Academy.

         10                 Last July, 1,200 graduates attended

         11  training in the language and culture of the

         12  Hispanic, Haitian and Chinese communities, as well

         13  as the culture of the African-American and African

         14  Caribbean community.

         15                 This April, expanded training on the

         16  African-American, African-Caribbean and African

         17  communities, as well as the Russian community, will

         18  be offered to 2,000 new Police Academy graduates.

         19                 The greater the understanding among

         20  new police officers of the range of cultures and

         21  languages in the City, the greater the likelihood of

         22  safe, effective police and community interactions.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         24  outline some of CUNY's initiatives that impact the

         25  education and well-being of the immigrants in New
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          2  York City. It is impossible to overstate the ways in

          3  which immigrants have enriched this City in

          4  economics, in business, the arts, the sciences,

          5  education, through the buoyancy and vibrancy that

          6  comes from cultures converging and creating a new

          7  societal fabric. CUNY has played a critical role. We

          8  remain committed to the important work of ensuring

          9  that our population of immigrant students has access

         10  to programs and services that will enable them to

         11  succeed, as they most certainly do, at CUNY

         12  campuses, and beyond.

         13                 Before you hear from others who will

         14  provide you with greater detail about several of

         15  these initiatives, I would be happy to answer any

         16  questions that you may have.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you, Vice

         19  Chancellor Mirrer. Yes, we do have some questions.

         20                 First of all, I am delighted that

         21  students are here today. It is imperative that we

         22  hear from the students. They are the ones who are

         23  actually experiencing these things, many times these

         24  programs sound great, but then when you really see

         25  an impact on the students, some of them are able to
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          2  participate and some find it difficult. So, I am

          3  delighted that we are going to be hearing from them.

          4  And if everybody else doesn't mind, they do have to

          5  get back to their class, so after the Vice

          6  Chancellor is finished, we are going to call on the

          7  students.

          8                 How many students do we have that

          9  choose to speak. Okay, all right. How many of you

         10  are pressed for time? All right. Try to really bear

         11  in mind that everybody kind of is on a schedule. In

         12  fact, we have to be out of here in a certain point

         13  in order to allow for the Environmental Committee,

         14  of which I am a member, to convene.

         15                 On the one-year CUNY Immersion

         16  Program, which is a 9:00 to 3:00 program, five days

         17  a week, it's for a whole year; how is it paid for by

         18  the students? It's a wonderful program, how is it

         19  paid for?

         20                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I am going to

         21  ask Dean Mogulescu to talk about it a little bit

         22  further.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Would you

         24  please introduce yourself for the record?

         25                 MR. MOGULESCU: Sure. John Mogulescu,
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          2  University Dean for Adult and Continuing Education.

          3                 One way for sure is by the City

          4  Council special funding that we have received for

          5  the Immersion Program and we are very grateful for

          6  that.

          7                 Secondly, from the general operating

          8  budget of the University that comes from the State

          9  with a special allocation in the State budget, and

         10  then a modest tuition amount, students pay $100 for

         11  approximately 250 hours of instruction to a maximum

         12  of $300 in the course of the year, public assistance

         13  recipients pay $25 for that same 250 hours of

         14  instruction.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay, I just

         16  want to be sure that we are recording that. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 Now, also on the summer Immersion

         19  Program, many of the students, I represent a lot of

         20  immigrant students and immigrant families, many

         21  times the student who is going to college, though,

         22  has to help to take care of the family financially

         23  and work, how is their enrollment in the summer

         24  program, the summer Immersion program?

         25                 A lot of them would like to spend
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          2  their time at the beach, but many of them, in fact

          3  not only immigrant students, but a lot of students

          4  work in the summer.

          5                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, we had

          6  many thousands of students last summer enrolled in

          7  our Summer Immersion Program. The programs, those

          8  programs are offered at all of our campuses and we

          9  had last summer somewhere between 16,000 and 20,000

         10  students enrolled in the USIP program, not all of

         11  them were ESL students, but many of them in fact

         12  were.

         13                 Because the offerings are spread out

         14  through the day and through the evening, we are able

         15  to reach many students --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Even in the

         17  summer they are in the evening?

         18                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Even in the

         19  summer, that's correct. Who, you know, would have

         20  particular difficult meeting a very fixed schedule

         21  that is coincided either with work or family

         22  obligations.

         23                 So, we have tried to schedule an

         24  array of offerings that will meet not only a

         25  student's daily schedules, but also the summer
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          2  length schedules so that we have some intensive

          3  versions in the early part of the summer and we are

          4  this summer pushing towards the end of the summer

          5  where we find that some students have more

          6  availability to make more offerings during that

          7  time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And what is the

          9  cost of that program and who bears the cost of that

         10  program?

         11                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: The

         12  University bears the cost of that program.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: It's a free

         14  program during the summer?

         15                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Yes, it is.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

         17                 Now, the University Skills

         18  Improvement Program includes also all of the

         19  students, and now with the Board's recent resolution

         20  where we are going to stop all the remediation in

         21  the four-year colleges, are we going to have enough

         22  room for all of these students?

         23                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, our

         24  plan is for those students who need ESL and remedial

         25  instruction, and who are not exempted from the Board
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          2  resolution. Our plan is to focus on outreach both at

          3  the high school level and in summer and intercession

          4  Immersion programs. And we do anticipate having

          5  spread out through the system enough seats to

          6  accommodate all of the need that there will be.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: If we can just

          8  backtrack a little bit to the first part of your

          9  statement, that you just made before. Could you

         10  repeat that please for us?

         11                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: What I said

         12  was that for those students who were not exempted

         13  from the board resolution --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes. There are

         15  some students who are exempt and there are some who

         16  aren't, how is that determined?

         17                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, the

         18  guidance that the Board has offered is that students

         19  who have spent some portion of their high school

         20  programs abroad, will be exempted, if they have no

         21  other remedial needs will be exempted from the

         22  resolution insofar as they will be admitted without

         23  having passed the three freshmen skills assessment

         24  tests, they will be admitted to senior colleges.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Now, those are
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          2  the students who complete their high school diploma

          3  work outside of the United States, right?

          4                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: The Board has

          5  refined that definition.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Oh, okay.

          7                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: So that a

          8  student who has completed any portion of a high

          9  school career abroad is exempted from the

         10  resolution.

         11                 In other words, a student doesn't

         12  have to have received a diploma.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That is kind of

         14  new. This is how they are now rewriting the

         15  adjustment, rewriting the regulations according to

         16  the latest, this resolution?

         17                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: The

         18  Chancellor has this week provided guidelines to the

         19  colleges, to the senior colleges that will be

         20  affected by the resolution, and those guidelines

         21  provide for the exemption of students who have

         22  completed any portion of their high school education

         23  abroad.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And they need

         25  remediation?
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          2                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, those

          3  students typically will not -- well, I shouldn't say

          4  typically because many of them are able to pass all

          5  three CUNY freshmen skills assessment tests, but for

          6  those who are not, and this would --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: What is the

          8  usual percentage of those students who will not?

          9                 Now, these are students who have

         10  completed part of their education outside of the

         11  United States?

         12                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: That's right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And who also

         14  have completed their high school secondary

         15  education.

         16                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: That's

         17  correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: What percentage

         19  of students are they that have not received -- would

         20  you say have not received their secondary high

         21  school diploma?

         22                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, let me

         23  see if I understand the question.

         24                 About ten percent of the students we

         25  consider to be ESL students, and we define an ESL
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          2  student currently as a student who is enrolled in

          3  one or more ESL classes. So, using that definition

          4  as a guideline, we estimate that perhaps between ten

          5  and 15 percent of those students had some portion,

          6  completed some portion of their high school

          7  education abroad.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right, now,

          9  basically in order to enter into college, the

         10  University, one has to have a high school diploma.

         11                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: That's

         12  correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: So, these

         14  students would not have yet been qualified by -- you

         15  can't really identify them by having taken two ESL

         16  courses, they are not really enrolled in the college

         17  yet?

         18                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: That's

         19  correct.

         20                 The students that I am talking about

         21  are students who, for example, completed their

         22  freshman year of high school in another country,

         23  non-English speaking country, at a non-English

         24  speaking school and then came to New York let's say

         25  typically, and completed the rest of their high
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          2  school education here in this City, in this country.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: They came

          4  without their diplomas? High school diplomas?

          5                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: That's

          6  correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And what

          8  percentage of those students, what is that

          9  percentage of the school population?

         10                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: What we have

         11  looked at is we have looked at the whole category

         12  and that is about ten percent of our ESL students

         13  are in that category.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And what is the

         15  number? Can you give me the hard number? It can be

         16  an approximation.

         17                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I think I

         18  would like to get back to you on that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay, we would

         20  like that information.

         21                 All right, along those lines, though,

         22  we have students here in America who are coming out

         23  of high school who need help too, and can you see

         24  some conflict arising here with students who are in

         25  our public high schools who also have not completed
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          2  and they are trying to get into CUNY? Or even those

          3  who have completed their high school diploma and

          4  still need remediation, what do we say to them?

          5                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, what we

          6  have been saying and what we are saying to them is

          7  that we are prepared and are preparing to do the

          8  most aggressive pre-collegiate outreach that we have

          9  ever done, in order to reach those students and

         10  enable them, before they enroll one of the CUNY

         11  senior colleges, to complete whatever skills

         12  deficiencies they have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And where would

         14  they do that?

         15                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: They will do

         16  that, I believe they will do that principally in

         17  collaborations that we have for the New York City

         18  Board of Education, while in high school, in their

         19  junior and senior years, and in our Summer Immersion

         20  Programs, which we have in fact expanded

         21  tremendously and will continue to expand, and in

         22  intercession Immersion Programs which will reach

         23  students who need further remediation.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: A student who

         25  has not completed their high school diploma, can
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          2  they enroll in the summer program, the Summer

          3  Immersion Program?

          4                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Does it exist

          6  for them too?

          7                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: No, that

          8  program is only open to students who will be

          9  enrolling in a CUNY college, who plan to enroll in a

         10  CUNY college.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, they

         12  probably plan to do that, that is why they are

         13  trying to get their high school diploma?

         14                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, we have

         15  started a number of collaborations, and Dean

         16  Mogulescu just, quite correctly that I should

         17  mention, the CUNY Language Immersion Programs also,

         18  since the focus of this discussion is on ESL

         19  students.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: It doesn't hurt

         21  for us to look at them in the context of the entire

         22  student body.

         23                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Okay. But

         24  those students have available to them a full year

         25  cycle of Language Immersion Programs which will
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          2  address language difficulties, but will also address

          3  in the process skills deficiencies.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Now, that is

          5  the one that has the tuition fee of $100?

          6                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: One-hundred

          7  dollars, right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: But that is

          9  only open to ESL students.

         10                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: That's

         11  correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

         13                 We have been joined by Councilwoman

         14  Robinson who has just joined us. I know that

         15  Councilman Perkins does have some questions.

         16                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Good morning.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: How much of

         18  CUNY's budget is designated for the ESL programs at

         19  the senior colleges, and how much of it is spent on

         20  the community colleges also?

         21                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: The last full

         22  year that we have data available 1996/1997, the

         23  total cost of ESL instruction was $9.2 million, the

         24  senior college total was $3.7 million and the

         25  community college total was about $5.5 million?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: What was the

          3  community college level?

          4                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: $5.5 million.

          5                 I will just point out that the

          6  figures I have just given you are for instruction

          7  only. They don't include the amount of money that

          8  the University spends on student support services

          9  and other activities that may be connected.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We want to hear

         11  about some of those support services, because they

         12  are crucially important to keeping youngsters in

         13  college.

         14                 I am just reviewing some of the

         15  questions that the staff have prepared for us.

         16                 Does CUNY generate revenue by

         17  offering its CLS programs to non-CUNY students?

         18                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: The short

         19  answer is yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

         21                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Dean

         22  Mogulescu heads up those programs, so I will let him

         23  give you the long answer.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right.

         25                 MR. MOGULESCU: Let me just clarify,
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          2  Chair Marshall. I assume what you mean by non-CUNY

          3  students, are non-degree students, and certainly we

          4  do in a very large way through our adult and

          5  continuing education programs, and in 1997/'98 we

          6  served 19,000 students who took classes, paid a

          7  modest tuition through adult and continuing

          8  education. We also served another, oh, almost 6,000

          9  students who took free classes through our adult

         10  literacy initiative with funds from the City and the

         11  State and took ESL classes. So, you are talking

         12  there, other than matriculated students, another

         13  25,000 New Yorkers who are taking ESL classes on a

         14  non-matriculated basis.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: So we are

         16  really educating, and a lot of people.

         17                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Yes.

         18                 MR. MOGULESCU: Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Councilman

         20  Perkins has rejoined us and perhaps he has a

         21  question I understand.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes. Thank

         23  you very much, Madame Chair.

         24                 Thank you for your testimony and your

         25  constant appearance before us on behalf of CUNY.
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          2                 And let me just begin by

          3  complimenting you on what is really a rather

          4  extraordinary effort on your part that really should

          5  make all of us in this City feel very good about

          6  being New Yorkers, because of how you are so well

          7  doing, you know, the work that makes this a great

          8  City and that our Chairwoman pointed out before so

          9  well represents what the Statue of Liberty is about.

         10                 In your testimony you mention a

         11  collaboration with the Board of Education, in which

         12  300 13-year-old youngsters who are about to enter

         13  high school come to CUNY for intensive summer

         14  English language courses, and I am just wondering,

         15  of those 300, how are they chosen? Where are they

         16  from? Where are the schools from which they are

         17  chosen? Just to get an idea.

         18                 MR. MOGULESCU: Let me answer that,

         19  Councilman Perkins.

         20                 We ran that program at three of our

         21  schools, LaGuardia Community College, New York City

         22  Technical College, Bronx Community College, in

         23  collaboration with the Board of Ed, and each school

         24  district we have given an allotment of applications

         25  that they could recommend students to apply for the
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          2  summer program, and some districts were very

          3  aggressive in doing that and others were less so,

          4  and largely both Bronx and Brooklyn -- I shouldn't

          5  say that, Queens, Bronx and Brooklyn were equally

          6  distributed with regard to those numbers with a

          7  slightly higher number in Queens. But it is done in

          8  cooperation with the Board of Ed and it is done

          9  basically by school district.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do you see a

         11  need for such a collaboration in Manhattan?

         12                 MR. MOGULESCU: We had limited funding

         13  for that program. It was a pilot program. I think

         14  there would be a need for that kind of program in

         15  the five boroughs.

         16                 I would add, though, that we did get

         17  students from Manhattan, from school districts in

         18  Manhattan, and they just had to select one of the

         19  three colleges and actually for people in Manhattan

         20  to get to downtown Brooklyn New York City Tech

         21  students were very willing to do that, and even go

         22  up to the Bronx for people who lived in Upper

         23  Manhattan as well.

         24                 But certainly we would love to be

         25  able to have one in each borough, if we could, and I
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          2  think the Board of Ed, if funding were permitted,

          3  would be supportive of that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, we are,

          5  as you know, about to get involved in our budget

          6  process, so I just wanted to get a sense of what the

          7  possibilities were.

          8                 One final question, and that is, how

          9  long has this initiative been available?

         10                 MR. MOGULESCU: The summer program

         11  that you were talking about?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         13                 MR. MOGULESCU: This summer will be

         14  its third summer.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. Thank

         16  you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Councilwoman

         18  Robinson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you

         20  very much, Chairwoman Marshall and good morning.

         21                 I don't know whether or not this was

         22  addressed, but I know that often times people speak

         23  to me about the difficulty of having, receiving

         24  their transcripts from their homes and then to have

         25  them also translated, that seems to be a problem for
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          2  them.

          3                 Could you tell me, do you have

          4  offices that assist people with getting their

          5  transcripts and getting them translated?

          6                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Yes, we do.

          7  We have a very large operation. The University

          8  Application Processing Center, which in fact employs

          9  -- I don't have the exact number, but employs a

         10  number of people who are specifically trained in the

         11  evaluation of transcripts from countries around the

         12  world and I think they do quite a good job.

         13                 Actually Dean Mogulescu and I spent

         14  some time there recently watching them do the

         15  evaluations.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay, thank

         17  you.

         18                 Because folks come and tell you that

         19  they have had a very difficult time.

         20                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I hope not at

         21  CUNY.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Well, I am

         23  not sure whether or not CUNY was the institution or

         24  not, but I know that they have --

         25                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, please
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          2  let us know if there are any problems there because

          3  we do have an operation that is supposed to

          4  specifically help students along in this way.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you.

          6                 Let me ask you this question: How has

          7  welfare reform affected new immigrant students?

          8                 MR. MOGULESCU: I guess I will answer

          9  that.

         10                 Welfare reform has affected new

         11  immigrant students as well as native-born students.

         12                 CUNY has far less welfare recipients

         13  than we did four years ago. We had 27,000 welfare

         14  recipients, we now have approximately 10,000. I

         15  think this is reasonably consistent with the drop in

         16  public assistance, from whatever, 1.1 million to

         17  whatever it is, 650,000.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Is that

         19  because everyone got jobs or what?

         20                 MR. MOGULESCU: I can't speak to that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: For the drop

         22  in the population. I am sorry?

         23                 MR. MOGULESCU: I can't speak to that.

         24  We have no data on that. I am not sure what the City

         25  does either, but certainly we have far less welfare
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          2  recipients in CUNY than we did four years ago.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay, thank

          4  you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Speaking of

          6  calculating your credits, I stood at that counter at

          7  Queens College many years ago and listened to the

          8  lady standing next to me and she was bringing out

          9  impressive degrees from all over the world and they

         10  just melted it down to almost nothing. I hope that

         11  that has gotten better.

         12                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I believe it

         13  has, but as I said, please let us know if any one of

         14  your districts has encountered any problems.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Does CUNY also

         16  -- students that are not documented, how does a

         17  foreign student, how are they able to access our

         18  educational system? Student Visas? Could you give us

         19  a little background of their plight?

         20                 MR. MOGULESCU: I don't think either

         21  of us are expert on that. I think that we do have an

         22  apparatus within the Office of Student Affairs that

         23  very seriously looks at these, and experts, but I

         24  think we are going to have to get back to you. I

         25  don't think either of us wants to talk off the top

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  of our head.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I know from my

          4  district that problem does come up and I would like

          5  to get more information on that, you know, and their

          6  student Visas, you know, that is very, very

          7  important.

          8                 MR. MOGULESCU: Okay.

          9                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: It may well

         10  be that some of the students you hear from shortly

         11  will be able to tell you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay. I am

         13  looking forward to that, right.

         14                 Do you have any problem -- to relate

         15  back to Council Member Robinson's question, do you

         16  have any problem getting transcripts from other

         17  countries?

         18                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: While the

         19  student is responsible for getting a transcript from

         20  the institutions that they came from, and, yes,

         21  there have been problems. Sometimes the transcripts

         22  are just simply not easy to obtain. But the burden,

         23  you know, the burden of that is on the students. We

         24  do have an operation that tries to be helpful, and

         25  as I said before, I hope they are helpful and we
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          2  would like to hear if they are not.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Depending upon

          4  our foreign policy, when we don't have a friendly

          5  relationship in another country, I imagine that

          6  could be difficult.

          7                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: It has from

          8  time to time been difficult, and we do try to -- we

          9  have a counseling staff through which we do try to

         10  help the students through the admissions process and

         11  begin their study in the expectation that the

         12  transcript will be forthcoming.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: The question

         14  that I have is, those students who will probably

         15  pass your Immersion, the assessment tests, but find

         16  that they still some ESL help along the way, is

         17  there a mechanism, is there an opportunity for them

         18  to get that?

         19                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, what we

         20  are doing is developing support services that will

         21  help students in all areas. We know that students

         22  continue to have problems in writing. This is

         23  universal, this is not just CUNY, but it is

         24  particularly relevant in the case of students whose

         25  first language is not English, and we have just
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          2  initiated a major writing, in the disciplines

          3  writing across the curriculum program, project, in

          4  order to address those needs which tend to be the

          5  greatest needs, particularly for students who are

          6  ESL students. And we really intend this to reach

          7  every CUNY student at every one of our colleges,

          8  both community and senior colleges, and to ensure

          9  that their needs, their communication needs are

         10  addressed before they reach junior year status.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: In our ESL

         12  programs, are they taught by full-time professors or

         13  adjuncts? What is the breakdown? I am sure there are

         14  some of both.

         15                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: What we know

         16  is that about a little bit less than half of the

         17  cost associated with ESL instruction, about 46

         18  percent of the cost associated for the ESL

         19  instruction is devoted to paying adjunct faculty.

         20  So, you know, that is probably the best data that I

         21  can give you, it is a mix.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Almost 50

         23  percent adjunct. Well, if its 46 percent --

         24                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Of the cost

         25  associated with ESL instruction.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

          3                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: But we do

          4  have a very -- at all of our campuses we have a very

          5  strong full-time ESL faculty. The University has an

          6  ESL discipline council which consists of the chairs

          7  of all the ESL programs in all of our colleges. I

          8  work pretty closely with them. They meet regularly

          9  and come together to export best practices in ESL

         10  instruction across all of the colleges.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right. To

         12  the golden oldies now, a program that is very close

         13  to my heart, that is the ACE Program, the Adult

         14  Continuing Education Program; is there an ESL

         15  component to it? This is for those of my colleagues

         16  who don't know, this is a program that you have to

         17  be 30 years old and older to enroll in and it is

         18  designed for bright adults who sort of made their

         19  way in the world, in their fields, but they need

         20  that college degree and it's a wonderful program. I

         21  gave a little commercial.

         22                 MR. MOGULESCU: There are special

         23  adult degree programs, similar to what you just

         24  talked about. Lehmann, for example, has a very large

         25  adult degree program, and the age, I forget the age,
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          2  it may be close to 30, a little bit less, and so

          3  there are special adult degree programs, special

          4  services for adult students throughout the

          5  University.

          6                 There is also an exceedingly large

          7  adult and continuing education program that I talked

          8  about earlier that just as I said, serves, you know,

          9  close to 25,000 students on a non-credit basis with

         10  regard to ESL instruction as well.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

         12                 We have also been joined by

         13  Councilman DiBrienza and Councilman Warden.

         14                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Good morning.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And Councilman

         16  Golden is making his way up here.

         17                 Does anyone else have a question they

         18  would like to ask of the Vice Chancellor?

         19                 Okay, second round for Council Member

         20  Perkins.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Did you

         22  discuss the community outreach that CUNY does to

         23  inform immigrant communities of the CUNY courses and

         24  also the staffing at CUNY in terms of the various

         25  languages that are out there?
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          2                 For instance, how many languages did

          3  you say were at CUNY, were spoken at CUNY?

          4                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: More than

          5  150.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: About 150?

          7                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: More than

          8  that. About 160.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So you have

         10  folks on staff, there are at least 150 members of

         11  your staff?

         12                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Among the

         13  CUNY faculty, we estimate that we have speakers in

         14  every one of those languages. They are not our ESL

         15  instructors.

         16                 ESL instruction is done by faculty

         17  who are trained in ESL instruction and it is not

         18  language specific, it is not language specific

         19  instruction. So, students come together in a

         20  classroom who may be speakers of Russian, speakers

         21  of Mandarin, speakers of Spanish and in fact I have

         22  enjoyed very much watching some of them together in

         23  some of our language Immersion programs, and they

         24  learn very well from each other. They encounter

         25  obviously different challenges which come from the
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          2  native language, the translation of the native

          3  language of which they speak into English, but

          4  actually works rather well, in my view, to have

          5  those students mixed together.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And in terms

          7  of your outreach operation, do you have such an

          8  outreach program towards immigrants in their

          9  surrounding areas?

         10                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Yes, we do a

         11  lot of outreach, particularly in the high schools.

         12  We have a very large operation, which is attached to

         13  our Office of Admission Services, which has a staff

         14  of counselors that go into the high schools, the

         15  various high schools in the City of New York and

         16  spend quite a lot of time discussing CUNY's programs

         17  and in particular CUNY's expectation with high

         18  school students. We do a very large mailing to

         19  parents of all high school students in the New York

         20  schools.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: In the

         22  language of the parents?

         23                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Yes. We have

         24  our materials translated.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I mean, it is
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          2  obvious but I was just wondering.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: One of the

          5  colleges that I guess we all perceive as the college

          6  for ESL is Hostos, and of course we are going to

          7  hear from Hostos today. We are sorry that Dr.

          8  Fernandez couldn't join us, but she sent a very able

          9  representative.

         10                 How does the City University, how do

         11  you utilize that kind of program?

         12                 Do you use it, you know, as an

         13  experimental lab on how to work with ESL students? I

         14  just would like to know a little bit more about it.

         15  All I have heard is criticism, which I say well how

         16  could that be?

         17                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, Dr.

         18  Fernandez has just brought to the Board, as a matter

         19  of fact, a new initiative, which I am sure you will

         20  be hearing about in detail. The initiative focuses

         21  very much on the acquisition of English, by speakers

         22  of Spanish, but also will provide an opportunity for

         23  true bilingualism for students at the college as a

         24  whole, and there is a new array, actually there is a

         25  new department, which Dr. Fernandez believes is
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          2  going to enable her to focus much more closely on

          3  ESL instruction, and to use faculty whose expertise

          4  is most closely associated with teaching English to

          5  students who are non-native speakers of English, and

          6  we will be looking -- you know, obviously this is a

          7  new department, it is a new initiative and we will

          8  be monitoring very closely the success of that

          9  program and we will certainly be looking to export

         10  the best practices that we find to other ESL

         11  programs in the University.

         12                 We have been very supportive

         13  centrally. Certainly we have been very supportive of

         14  that effort. We think it is very important to the

         15  University.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, clearly,

         17  if I were a student, and I were an immigrant student

         18  who really needed a lot of help with ESL, I would be

         19  attracted to go to Hostos. I would feel that that is

         20  the place where I would get the greatest help.

         21                 So, we are looking forward to the

         22  testimony from Hostos.

         23                 If my colleagues have no other

         24  questions?

         25                 All right, thank you very, very much
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          2  --

          3                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL:-- For your

          6  testimony.

          7                 All right, our next panel is going to

          8  be a student panel. Now, we also have some students

          9  who will be involved -- we are doing three panels,

         10  one is CUNY Language Immersion Program, the other is

         11  Innovative ESL programs for degree students, and the

         12  other is the student panel.

         13                 Now, some of the students are

         14  involved in the first panel which is the Language

         15  Immersion Program, and others are involved in the

         16  ESL programs for degree students. So we would ask

         17  those students not to be part of the student panel

         18  right now.

         19                 Mr. Biswas, we are very honored to

         20  have him here today, who is the head of the student

         21  center, and won't you please come up.

         22                 Merlin Rosal. Tania Hernandez. Olivia

         23  Mera. Mark Krivitsky. And Agnes Agraham.

         24                 Now, are there other students? Do we

         25  have any room? All right, perhaps the students here
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          2  that you raised your hands who are under the time

          3  constraint, won't you come and sit here in the front

          4  row so that you can testify quickly.

          5                 Is there anyone else who has a

          6  serious time constraint? Come and sit in the front

          7  row.

          8                 The other panels will be a mixture of

          9  both faculty and students.

         10                 Mr. Biswas, why don't you get

         11  started. Introduce yourself.  And everyone, would

         12  you make sure that you introduce yourselves as soon

         13  as you take the microphone.

         14                 MR. BISWAS: Thank you.

         15                 Good morning. My name is Mizanoor

         16  Biswas. I am the Student Trustee of the Board. As

         17  virtue of my election and reelection as the Chair of

         18  the University Student Senate, which represents

         19  250,000 students and 150,000 non-degree students,

         20  meaning the non-credit-bearing students --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: What was that

         22  number?

         23                 MR. BISWAS: The Adult in Continuing

         24  Education, we have 250,000 of them.

         25                 But Chair Marshall, Councilwoman
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          2  Robinson, Councilpersons DiBrienza and Councilman

          3  Warden and Councilman Golden, thank you for having

          4  us, for giving us the opportunity. But let me

          5  express my heartfelt gratitude towards the friend

          6  that we have from CUNY, Councilwoman Helen Marshall.

          7  I must say that she is a true, true friend of CUNY.

          8  I remember the last time we had her in Queens

          9  College she had to be here and she just missed half

         10  of a meeting to be with us at Queens College, and I

         11  can't say enough words about her. I have seen her

         12  whenever we need her and wherever we need her.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay, that's

         14  enough. Thank you very much, I appreciate that.

         15                 MR. BISWAS: I would not bore you with

         16  statistics and other things, I am sure you could

         17  have those statistics from the University officials,

         18  but let me start with the personal stories that I

         19  want to share with you.

         20                 I came here, and still I am an

         21  international student from a country called

         22  Bangladesh, about nine years ago. First I came to

         23  Ohio State and then from there I was looking for a

         24  better and cheaper university and then I heard of

         25  CUNY, and I came here. Starting at York College,
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          2  graduate with cumlaude and then I am now currently a

          3  graduate student of City College in the department

          4  of economics.

          5                 I consider myself a typical

          6  international immigrant student, even though I am

          7  not an immigrant yet, hope to be one day.

          8                 I came here with very little English

          9  background, almost none, and one of my professors

         10  here, Professor Rafael, who sort of demoted me, I

         11  wrote a horrible essay and I still remember him, no,

         12  no, no, you don't belong with this group, go to the

         13  lower one, and there I started.

         14                 I took about three semesters of ESL

         15  before I went into the English 101, the composition

         16  101. On the flip side of the coin, I remember I

         17  started working as a delivery guy in a deli called

         18  Carnegie Deli, I worked until 3:00 or 4:00 in the

         19  morning, and then I would have like five, six hours

         20  of sleep, and then come back to college at 8:00,

         21  9:00. This is important because I share about ten

         22  percent of the students, seven to ten percent of the

         23  students of the City University of New York being

         24  international students, I share their feelings and

         25  their experience as a whole.
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          2                 I mean, some campuses like City

          3  College has about 14, 15 percent international

          4  students, purely international students, and I took

          5  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: What is the

          7  difference between an international student and a

          8  regular student?

          9                 MR. BISWAS: International students

         10  are the F1 Visa holder students. They pay twice as

         11  much as what the resident students say, which is

         12  out-of-state tuition, and they never become eligible

         13  to pay for the resident tuition. Until now I have

         14  been paying the international student rate, which is

         15  twice as much as the residents rate, no matter how

         16  long they stay here. And also they are not eligible

         17  to get any financial aid. They are limited on campus

         18  job for 20 hours. Maybe in the summertime they work

         19  full time but they have to go through immigration to

         20  get the permission and you are not eligible to get

         21  it until you pass the first year of your education.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And how many

         23  credits must they bear?

         24                 MR. BISWAS: They must bear 12

         25  credits, full-time status.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, now you

          3  know that the state is saying that you have to --

          4  well, of course it wouldn't apply to these students

          5  because they don't get that but now the Governor

          6  wants that to be 15 percent in order to --

          7                 MR. BISWAS: Fifteen, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right. Go

          9  right ahead.

         10                 MR. BISWAS: And then finally within

         11  five and a half years I graduated from York, you

         12  know, took two years off and came back to City

         13  College.

         14                 I want to share particularly certain

         15  things that have been happening with CUNY, some of

         16  them are very good and some of them need to have

         17  additional funding, some from City Council, from

         18  other sources as well. And one of them that I

         19  especially was privileged to have was the foreign

         20  student scholarship, which I think took place for

         21  two years within the City University and then

         22  suddenly, then the Chancellor, he felt like it was

         23  not like the initiative, and then stopped.

         24                 This is not need based scholarship,

         25  this was scholarship based on scholarly activities,
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          2  and as you know, the international students are

          3  among the highest percentage who graduate from City

          4  University. I think it is better than the native

          5  rate.

          6                 I would like to see the City Council,

          7  and any other sources, would pressure the Board, the

          8  Chancellor, to reestablish the scholarship programs.

          9  As you know, the last year alone, six to seven

         10  countries had natural calamities, floods, hurricanes

         11  and other things.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Earthquakes.

         13                 MR. BISWAS: Earthquakes, you name it.

         14  Especially those students, if the University could

         15  not come up with the scholarship funds, at least

         16  they should have some money for emergency funds.

         17                 For instance, a student from Columbia

         18  had an earthquake, depending on dollar from there,

         19  you know, his or her family could be nowhere, could

         20  even be dead, and now international students here

         21  are facing big crisis here, meaning that he cannot

         22  be out of school for the semester unless there is a

         23  good reason. If he is out of school, he is out of

         24  status, he is considered legally out of status, and

         25  he is short, he would be able to pay back the
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          2  University within a year or so, but he doesn't have

          3  the money on him because he doesn't know where his

          4  family is. That is a harsh predicament on any

          5  citizen who is coming from abroad, and University

          6  currently doesn't have any policy or any tuition

          7  waiver policy and I would like to see that the

          8  University comes up with something like that.

          9                 The citizenship project, one of the

         10  persons who I admire a lot in the university is

         11  Susan Curtis, and she is here. Alan Warnick, who is

         12  an excellent attorney who heads the immigration

         13  clinic at City College. I think this is one of the

         14  best programs that has been happening in CUNY. But

         15  once again, the resources is very limited. I think

         16  they are going to Hostos and next year probably it

         17  will come to -- it should have first been in Queens

         18  anyway, Queens has the most amount of immigrant

         19  students in any case, but they are coming to

         20  LaGuardia. What it does, students are afraid to talk

         21  to anybody, especially internationalists, regarding

         22  the immigration status, that they, you know, they

         23  might get into trouble. This immigration clinic

         24  doesn't reveal names or anything else, the student

         25  goes there and talks about their problem and gets
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          2  objectives, suggestions, and valuable information

          3  that they need to get.

          4                 That is an excellent thing, but once

          5  again, the money is drying up. We had a hard time to

          6  convince our Board Chairwoman this year to

          7  reallocate the funding that we had. But finally she

          8  was kind of enough to consider it and gave us the

          9  money that we needed, but we need more money to

         10  duplicate these kind of programs in different

         11  campuses.

         12                 One of the things that is happening

         13  in the Board is, Trustee Colander (phonetic) is

         14  trying to introduce a new resolution saying that any

         15  student at the community college who does not pass

         16  the writing assessment tests won't be able to take

         17  any credit-bearing courses. Meaning, could fail the

         18  writing test, which is to some extent for the

         19  immigrants and the international students, is very

         20  unfair.

         21                 If I am coming from a country which

         22  doesn't have any subways, for instance, and many of

         23  the countries doesn't have, and I was asked to write

         24  an essay that citizens would be allowed to play loud

         25  music in subways and they are not familiar with the
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          2  terms that you want them to write about, one is loud

          3  music, some countries, culturally they don't play

          4  loud music, and some cultures they don't have

          5  subways, in Africa and in Asia, and that are some of

          6  the topics that are being given out to the students

          7  to place them. And as an international student, they

          8  may have the ability to write, but they might not

          9  have the familiarity with the subject.

         10                 So, we are being asked to write, and

         11  at the same time we could be very good in math, we

         12  could be very good in science areas, we could be

         13  very good in music.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Let me ask you

         15  a question then.

         16                 Are you saying, according to what the

         17  Board is saying, they are saying that ESL students

         18  are exempt from this resolution? Are you saying that

         19  international students are not exempt from it? Is

         20  that what I hear you saying?

         21                 MR. BISWAS: The term ESL differs. I

         22  was glad to hear from Vice Chancellor Mirrer that

         23  they are redefining the terms, which I am not aware

         24  of, being a member of the Board. Maybe the

         25  Chancellor did it. And if it is, they are moving to
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          2  the right direction. I would be happy to accept it,

          3  but if you talk to certain members of the Board, ESL

          4  meaning two years of education abroad, it excludes,

          5  according to some members of the Board it excludes

          6  people who took the diploma from high school from

          7  this country, they are excluded as ESL, but two

          8  years or one year of high school education does not

          9  give enough, you know, education for them not to

         10  consider it as an ESL student. So that term is

         11  totally, you know, depending on who you are talking

         12  to. And it is very vague.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That's what I

         14  am afraid of.

         15                 MR. BISWAS: And I should not bad

         16  mouth about the Board that I work with, but it could

         17  be very skewed in terms of defining and giving out

         18  information.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

         20                 Mr. Biswas, we want to thank you for

         21  your presentation. It has been comprehensive. We

         22  could really talk to you a lot longer, but we do

         23  want to try to get the rest of the panel in.

         24                 We have been joined by a class here

         25  that is from one of our member's district, and that
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          2  is Councilman Perkins. I would just say to the

          3  children that this is a meeting of the Higher

          4  Education Committee and we deal with college, where

          5  you are all going some day. And so if you listen to

          6  some of the questions, you will see some of the

          7  problems that students face, particularly students

          8  who don't speak English that well who speak another

          9  language a little better than they speak English.

         10  And so I hope that you will enjoy the morning, but

         11  we, first of all, we have to introduce Mr. Perkins

         12  who will give you a formal welcome.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         14  very much, Madame Chairwoman.

         15                 This is one of our elementary

         16  schools, PS 92, and we are very happy that they have

         17  come to City Hall to see this historic building and

         18  to see the City Council that works for them actually

         19  at work. Hopefully one day some of you will be

         20  sitting here replacing me and my colleagues in terms

         21  of representing the Harlem community or whatever

         22  community you will be living in at the time that you

         23  are of age.

         24                 So, I just want to welcome you for

         25  coming and hope that you will come again and give
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          2  you a round of applause.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I also have a

          4  PS 92, that is why we had to really find out which

          5  borough.

          6                 Okay, our next speaker. Move the

          7  microphone right in front of you. And the microphone

          8  is on when the light is off.

          9                 MS. MERA: Good morning.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And would you

         11  give us your name.

         12                 MS. MERA: My name is Olivia Mera. I

         13  am a student from John Jay College.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Can you speak

         15  directly into the microphone so that we can properly

         16  record you?

         17                 MS. MERA: Okay.

         18                 It is almost ten years since I came

         19  from Ecuador to this country. I brought with me my

         20  three little children, Wendy was nine, David was

         21  five and Jennifer was three years old. I brought

         22  with me a solid education including a master's in

         23  civil engineering and experience in that field. But

         24  unfortunately I didn't speak English. I was

         25  completely dissatisfied with my new life. I was
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          2  frustrated because I couldn't communicate with

          3  others.

          4                 This language was a giant to try to

          5  swallow me. I was fighting only with this language,

          6  but also trying to adopt to this new environment. It

          7  was like a monster eager to eat me. I fought with

          8  all of my strength to survive in this country full

          9  of uncertaintees with enormous opportunity for any

         10  immigrant ambitious enough to succeed.

         11                 I started my long journey by spending

         12  eight to ten hours every day educating myself to

         13  English, by listening to tapes that I got from the

         14  Public Library.

         15                 After educated my ear, I decided to

         16  attend my English classes in the evening after I

         17  finish my house chores.

         18                 I wanted more than that. I wanted to

         19  be a successful professional as I was in my country.

         20  I knew I could make it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Good for you.

         22                 MS. MERA: My dedication, physical

         23  motivation to become useful for my children and for

         24  this society encouraged me to attend college.

         25                 I still remember my first day at

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  Hostos Community College. A bilingual community

          3  college that offered opportunity for

          4  non-English-speaking students with a desire to

          5  accomplish their goals or dreams.

          6                 I got my associate degree from there

          7  and wanted more education. I decided to apply to

          8  John Jay College at a time I was full-time waitress

          9  and a full-time student. I was juggling with my

         10  nights with three small children and a divorce. It

         11  was hard, but I made it.

         12                 My ambition led me to continue toward

         13  my master's degree at John Jay College. In this

         14  semester I will obtain my degree.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That's great.

         16                 MS. MERA: Today I am more than

         17  satisfied with the completion of my studies and

         18  preparation. Indeed, I want to say I am so happy

         19  that I took the opportunity that CUNY offers to many

         20  immigrants who came to this country with the only

         21  objective, to become a professional. I am one of

         22  them.

         23                 I thank CUNY for the opportunity to

         24  accomplish my dreams and for providing me with the

         25  opportunity to build a better future for my
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          2  children.

          3                 My children are proud of my

          4  achievement. I am the role model for them. CUNY

          5  waits for my children and I am completely sure to

          6  offer you three stars, you can shape them through

          7  education, and later on my children will embrace

          8  this country.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you very,

         11  very much. Congratulations.

         12                 MS. MERA: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Our next

         14  speaker.

         15                 MR. KRITIVISKIY: Good morning. My

         16  name is Mark Kritiviskiy. One day it happened - my

         17  family and I came to America. I didn't really know

         18  if the decision was right, and I had no idea of what

         19  was expected of me here. I didn't know what I would

         20  do in this country. I knew only that people from the

         21  former USSR emigrated here and they were always sure

         22  that life in the United States would be better.

         23                 I was used to life in former USSR,

         24  but I wanted my son to have a better future. My

         25  brother also pushed me to make this step. He left
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          2  with his family three years before me. So, my life

          3  in the United States started on May 5th, 1992.

          4                 My family and I studied

          5  English-as-a-second-language at NYANA, this is New

          6  York Association for New Americans, then I went and

          7  studied at Federal Employment and Guidance

          8  Assistance, then Technical College Institute, and

          9  within one year my wife became a student at New York

         10  City Technical College. She had a master's degree

         11  from USSR in bread production, but I didn't want my

         12  wife to work her whole life in the bakery on Church

         13  Avenue in Brooklyn.

         14                 The first year she took English and

         15  then she moved to other classes. At the same time,

         16  my brother graduated from City College and got a

         17  position as a registered nurse in Mount Sinai

         18  Hospital. I didn't want to go to school. I completed

         19  eighth grade, then three years, three and a half

         20  years of civil engineering school and finally five

         21  years at Riga's Polytechnic University. I graduated

         22  from every level with an Honor degree.

         23                 In this country I worked for years --

         24  I am sorry. I worked for years in Latvia, it was one

         25  of the republic from former USSR, as an engineer. In

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  the United States I worked in maintenance as a

          3  repairman/driver, in 1996 I decided to go to City

          4  College. I took a lot of classes before I enrolled

          5  in my current graduate program of computer science.

          6                 I expect this semester to be my last

          7  semester at City College.

          8                 Through a work study program for

          9  graduate students, CUNYCAP, the University gave me a

         10  chance to practice database design.  The product of

         11  my work is being used by the Office of Student

         12  Services and I am receiving a little pay and help

         13  with my graduate tuition.

         14                 Thanks to CUNY, I hope to have a good

         15  future in the United States, of which I recently

         16  became a citizen.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 MS. ROSAL: Good morning. My name is

         21  Merlin Rosal.

         22                 Most people at some point in their

         23  life establish goals which they honestly attempt to

         24  achieve.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Could you move
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          2  the microphone a little closer to you.

          3                 MS. ROSAL: However, for many, the

          4  realities of life create challenges, which can only

          5  be overcome by pure individual strength,

          6  determination, courage and willpower.

          7                 There are a myriad of words available

          8  to describe the individual character trait or

          9  personal strategy that encouraged me to triumph over

         10  my threadbare situation and finally to make a

         11  decision to find upward mobility. My favorite word

         12  is tenacious.

         13                 Tenacious describes my determination

         14  to stay focused in college, despite personal,

         15  financial and all other obstacles that threatened my

         16  progress. Setting goals for myself such as achieving

         17  Dean's List status, graduating with highest honors,

         18  and eventually being accepted to pursue my graduate

         19  and doctorate studies are necessary if I wanted to

         20  touch the lives of the many people whom I will be

         21  interacting with from time to time.

         22                 While traversing through the

         23  corridors of life in search of upward mobility, I

         24  decided to resign my job in Trinidad as a

         25  photographer where I was employed from 1982 to 1992.
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          2  This led to my decision to migrate to the great

          3  United States of America.

          4                 After working in several low-paying

          5  jobs, such as store clerk/cashier, housekeeper, baby

          6  sitter, home health aide and nursing assistant,

          7  which paid from $4.50 to $12.60 per hour, I decided

          8  that enough was enough.

          9                 I realized that I needed to take

         10  another step in life. To accomplish this, I applied

         11  to the City University of New York for admission

         12  into the Education Department and was accepted at

         13  Medgar Evers College.

         14                 My entrance to Medgar Evers College

         15  brought me into college after being out of high

         16  school for nineteen years. I spent my first semester

         17  taking remedial English and math 002. During the

         18  winter intercession I enrolled in Remedial math 003

         19  and was not only successful in moving out of

         20  remedial classes, but passed in CUNY exams with

         21  excellent scores.

         22                 Being a product of remedial classes

         23  did not keep me back. In my second semester I took

         24  eight classes which carried 20 credits, during this

         25  time I was a full-time single mother. I worked at a
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          2  hospital in Staten Island at night and attended

          3  school during the day with no sleep.

          4                 This semester I was highly rewarded

          5  by making the Dean's List and maintaining a 4.0 GPA.

          6  I assisted my classmates in formulating the Medgar

          7  Evers Honors Club, subsequently to which I was

          8  elected president.

          9                 As a student leader, I also motivated

         10  myself to fun for office of Day Vice President of

         11  Medgar Evers College Student Government Association

         12  for the academic year.

         13                 In addition, I volunteer at Public

         14  School 161. This opportunity has given me the idea

         15  to pursue my ultimate goal of obtaining not only my

         16  Ph.D in education, but to be exceptionally well

         17  equipped to face the new millennium.

         18                 Moreover, that ultimate objective was

         19  to make a contribution not only to academic field,

         20  but on an international basis.

         21                 Due to my intentions to teach

         22  children who are physically challenged and be fully

         23  aware of the laws that affect them internationally,

         24  I convinced myself that I should change my major.

         25                 During my third semester, after being
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          2  involved in an accident and attending college every

          3  day with severe headaches, and my determination and

          4  my Math Professor's encouragement, I held on and

          5  remained focused.

          6                 My fourth and last semester of

          7  pursuing my Associate Degree I suffered an injury on

          8  my job, but I continued. With the threat of closing

          9  CUNY campuses and my injury I was not held back. I

         10  maintained the Dean's List and graduated in four

         11  semesters from Medgar Evers with my associates, with

         12  a GPA of 3.8.

         13                 As I continue to develop my

         14  philosophy, enhance my teaching skills, and increase

         15  my knowledge, I decided to create a program that is

         16  unique to me, but which could be accomplished in two

         17  years.

         18                 I applied to CUNY BA/BS program where

         19  I am pursuing majors in Children with Disabilities

         20  in the Classroom and Pre Law.

         21                 Through the capable teachings of the

         22  teachers employed throughout the CUNY system, mainly

         23  at Medgar Evers College, I am capable of boldly

         24  stating that in four years I will not have one, but

         25  three degrees. After three and a half years I will
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          2  graduate from CUNY BA/BAS program with my unique

          3  degree. The following semester I will graduate with

          4  my degree in special ed and become a licensed

          5  teacher.

          6                 I expect to remain on the Dean's List

          7  and earn Honors.

          8                 This special and important movement

          9  in my life could not have been successful without a

         10  CUNY program that had remediation in it.

         11                 I want to thank you for offering me

         12  this opportunity to share my testimony and my

         13  experience of my triumph with you.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We certainly

         16  thank you.

         17                 Each of these students are

         18  commendable when you think of what they are going

         19  through, and they are very typical of all of the

         20  students in our University, that is why we fight so

         21  hard.

         22                 Our next presenter.

         23                 MS. ABRAHAM: Good morning. My name is

         24  Agnes Abraham. I am currently enrolled as a public

         25  administration major at Medgar Evers College, since
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          2  the fall of 1997.

          3                 Personally it has always been my

          4  desire to advance scholastically, but due to

          5  financial constraints and the limited opportunities

          6  for me in my country of birth, which is the

          7  Commonwealth of Dominica, West Indies, it was very

          8  difficult.

          9                 However, upon migration to the United

         10  States of America, the City University of New York

         11  and Medgar Evers afforded me that opportunity.

         12                 Coming from a background where

         13  education is not only encouraged by relentlessly

         14  pursued, I found the challenge presented at CUNY

         15  just what I needed to realize my goals. As a single

         16  female, having to meet all of my expenses, tuition,

         17  although steep is no way comparable to the

         18  exorbitant prices being charged by other

         19  institutions.

         20                 The curriculum at those institutions

         21  is not superior to the one at my college. I am

         22  receiving at Medgar Evers an education that I am

         23  extremely proud of. While there remains much

         24  progress to be made, as it pertains to the programs

         25  and activities which will ultimately assist in the
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          2  overall development of the body politic; I can say

          3  without a shadow of a doubt that CUNY's agenda to

          4  empower educationally persons of all walks of life

          5  who are so minded to advance is appreciated and

          6  progressive.

          7                 There is an area that I found very

          8  disconcerting and that is the area of remedial

          9  classes. It is very difficult for immigrant students

         10  to acclimatize to the remedial requirements set

         11  forth by the Board of Trustees.

         12                 In my experience, I have had to do

         13  remedial algebra, and this puts an additional burden

         14  financially on an already financially strapped

         15  purse.

         16                 Imaging having to pay somewhere in

         17  the region of $800 for two courses, Math 002 and

         18  003, and not getting credit for either. I believe it

         19  puts us at a great disadvantage, and only adds to

         20  the frustration of students who do not have the

         21  required support necessary to spur them to continue

         22  on their chosen path. This can be one of the

         23  contributing factors for students not graduating at

         24  their projected time or the transfer from one

         25  college to the other.
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          2                 All in all I can say the experience

          3  at CUNY, other than the aforementioned concern will

          4  empower me to not only gain a secure financial

          5  future but will, I believe, equip me to be the

          6  productive citizen and public servant which is my

          7  life-long dream and desire.

          8                 In the words of my wise old

          9  grandfather, "the journey of 1,000 miles begins with

         10  one step", and I thank CUNY for making that step

         11  possible.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I wish I could

         13  can this and take it to the Board of Trustees.

         14  That's great.

         15                 Our next presenter.

         16                 MS. HERNANDEZ: Good morning. My name

         17  is Tania Hernandez, and I am an alumni from York

         18  College in Queens.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Before you

         20  leave, children, please forgive me, we introduce

         21  them and we make a policy of doing that. We are

         22  delighted to have you here.

         23                 These children are from PS 42 in

         24  Staten Island; am I right?

         25                 AUDIENCE: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Class 5306, and

          3  your teacher is Mrs. Gloria Block.

          4                 Your Councilman, who is Fiala, who is

          5  not here with us today because he is not on this

          6  Committee, but this is a meeting, a Committee

          7  meeting of the Higher Education Committee of the

          8  City Council. And all of you will be going to

          9  college some day and all of the discussion that we

         10  are having here is about the City University and

         11  these students who we are talking to today are

         12  students who are, many of them are from other

         13  countries and they are just praising our educational

         14  system and it gives them an opportunity to gain a

         15  college education. And if you listened just

         16  previously to the previous speakers, you know how

         17  they have really fully taken advantage of it, and

         18  are going on to do great things, and they are

         19  straight A students.

         20                 How many of you are straight A

         21  students? Let's see. You are a little shy about

         22  doing it, but keep up the good work and we are

         23  delighted to have you here today in City Hall and we

         24  welcome you.

         25                 Please continue. Sorry.
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          2                 MS. HERNANDEZ: As I said, my name is

          3  Tania Hernandez, and I represent an alumni from York

          4  College in Queens.

          5                 I was born in Guatemala City. As the

          6  youngest daughter of six, I didn't meet my father

          7  until I was 13, when I came to live in New York

          8  City, where he had been working to support the

          9  family for more than ten years. My adjustment to the

         10  new social and educational system was not easy. Even

         11  now I sometimes wonder if I'm really here.

         12                 At fifteen, I earned a High School

         13  Equivalency, or GED, because I was very afraid of

         14  the New York City public high schools, from things I

         15  had hear from people and the media, I just couldn't

         16  go to school. However, I did know that eventually I

         17  wanted to go to college.

         18                 At sixteen, I attended a Business

         19  School in Manhattan for one year and graduated as a

         20  bilingual secretary. Since I was young,

         21  inexperienced and really didn't know much English, I

         22  couldn't find a job. I worked at Burger King for

         23  almost two years to save enough money to pay for my

         24  first semester of college.

         25                 The next problems I confronted were
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          2  financial and legal ones. When I finally had the

          3  money to register for college, I found out that I

          4  was not legal, I was an illegal alien. My father,

          5  who had been living here for the past 25 years had

          6  never taken the time to do anything to legalize his

          7  status. It was like opening a pandoras box of

          8  insecurities, financial hazards and disappointments.

          9                 I eventually filed papers to acquire

         10  permanent resident status and eventually now I am in

         11  the process of becoming a US citizen, which I had

         12  applied two years ago without any response.

         13                 However, at that time, I had to pay

         14  the foreign student fee, which as this was said, is

         15  twice as much as a regular student.

         16                 My commute was almost two hours from

         17  Brooklyn to Jamaica, Queens, so I had to spend two

         18  hours each day, each commute, making four hours.

         19                 And I had no financial aid and no

         20  other way to finance my school.

         21                 When I first came to York College, I

         22  had to take English-as-a-second-language and

         23  remedial courses in math, English and reading.

         24                 Unfortunately, having to work full

         25  time, while I attended college, full time, was not
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          2  one of my first choices, but it was my only ticket.

          3                 The school and work schedule was

          4  exhausting. Sometimes even when I worked hard for a

          5  good grade I could not attain it. It was the

          6  beginning of my college career marked by the

          7  pressure of bills to pay, threats of deportation, as

          8  well as the challenge of learning a new language in

          9  an institution.

         10                 With perseverance, my academic

         11  performance continued to improve. I have attributed

         12  this academic growth to my increased knowledge of

         13  the English language, my adjustment to a new and

         14  different educational system and the resolution of

         15  my financial and legal problems to a certain degree.

         16                 One of my turning points in college

         17  was when I started taking classes in humanities and

         18  psychology. During my second semester at York

         19  College, I also felt the necessity to do something

         20  around the issues that were affecting my community.

         21  Although I was only 19 years of age, I organized a

         22  day-long conference at York on the issues of teen

         23  pregnancy and contraception. Somehow I involved the

         24  Student Government Association, the Office of

         25  Student Development, the Office of Student
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          2  Activities, my Women's Studies Professor, my entire

          3  Humanities class called Women's Myth and Reality, as

          4  well as community advocates.

          5                 This was the beginning of my

          6  experience as a student leader at York College. I

          7  became a member of the Committee on Educational

          8  Standards, a member of Student Government and was

          9  elected president of the Women's Club. I also formed

         10  a peer support and mentor club called Students for

         11  Students.

         12                 I took a leave of absence from

         13  college for one year. Financial reasons forced me to

         14  work full time. When I returned to school, I was

         15  actively involved in student government and once

         16  again became president of the Women's Club.

         17                 I helped to found what is now known

         18  as The Women's Center of York College. The Center

         19  sponsored many programs, including taking 42

         20  students to the March on Washington on Women's

         21  Rights.

         22                 Once could say that a culmination of

         23  my leadership efforts at York was when the college

         24  president chose me to be her mentee, which afforded

         25  me the opportunity to attend community events with
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          2  her and to have professional and personal access to

          3  her.

          4                 When I first came to York College, I

          5  didn't have anybody in my family who could give me

          6  any kind of guidance, since there was nobody here,

          7  except my parents who didn't speak English.

          8  Nevertheless, I found a family of professors and

          9  counselors, one is here today, who took me by the

         10  hand and gave me something that has no price:

         11  Self-assurance, self-esteem, someone to talk to,

         12  someone to cry to and smile at. That made me decide

         13  to be someone that students could approach, besides

         14  sharing the knowledge.

         15                 I want to continue sharing myself

         16  with the many other Tania's of this world, and I see

         17  Melina sitting over here, and I am so happy.

         18                 Besides sharing the knowledge, I want

         19  to continue sharing myself with the many other

         20  people who don't have families, people who don't

         21  have friends, or maybe someone who just wants

         22  someone to listen to.

         23                 I know it is possible for me to be a

         24  special listener for others. Today I hold a

         25  bachelors of arts from York College, Class of 1992,
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          2  a master's degree of social work from New York

          3  University, Class of 1994. And I am now a New York

          4  State certified social worker, employed full time at

          5  an outpatient mental health center in Brooklyn,

          6  Lutheran Medical Hospital.

          7                 In June I will complete a second

          8  master's degree in management and non-profit

          9  organizations at NYU also. I am currently applying

         10  to the PHD program in psychology at the CUNY

         11  Graduate School University Center.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Congratulations

         14  to this tremendous panel of students.

         15                 I did have one question. A number of

         16  you, two of you at least have come to this country,

         17  holding degrees from other colleges in your native

         18  country. Now, we just talked earlier with Vice

         19  Chancellor Mirrer on what I call the meltdown, when

         20  you stand there at that desk and they go through

         21  your degree, actually your degrees seem to have been

         22  totally ignored.

         23                 Can you briefly address that?

         24                 MS. MERA: Yes. The first time it was

         25  like after, probably like six months, I decided to
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          2  go into my career, but unfortunately I went to City

          3  College and one of the Counselors told me that since

          4  I didn't speak any words in English, it was

          5  impossible for me to be there.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And that was

          7  it?

          8                 MS. MERA: That was it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: But for some

         10  reason you continued to pursue.

         11                 MS. MERA: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Did she ask at

         13  all about your degrees from your other country?

         14                 MS. MERA: I was telling to the

         15  counselor that I had a master's degree from my

         16  country in Civil Engineering, and then I said what I

         17  want is just, you know, probably if they can help

         18  me, to learn English, but at the same time to stay

         19  in my field. And that is the reason that I was so

         20  frustrated, and I decided, it was somebody told me

         21  about Hostos Community College and I learned by

         22  myself, you know with my tapes, and after what you

         23  heard in my reading was a long time it took me to

         24  understand and to be able to go to college and

         25  attend an English course.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And you are

          3  presently pursuing, or have achieved a degree in?

          4                 MS. MERA: I am just finishing my

          5  master's degree in public administration and human

          6  resources, and I am going to do my Ph.D degree in

          7  consultation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Now, you should

          9  know, which you probably already do, City College

         10  has one of the most outstanding colleges of

         11  education in the country, my son graduated from it.

         12  And so did Dan Golden, who is the head of NASA. And

         13  there is a need for women in the field of

         14  engineering. It would seem to me that things could

         15  have taken a different tract for you if they had

         16  looked at your and considered your engineering

         17  degree. You have gone another direction, but I am

         18  sure you are happy with it, but we have lost a woman

         19  engineer and there is a great need for that.

         20                 MS. MERA: Yes.

         21                 You know, some people like you, they

         22  have been telling me to go to my track, because that

         23  is my track that I have loved, you know, it was my

         24  first inspiration when I started because I was in

         25  civil engineering. But now that I am ready, like I
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          2  am English prepared enough, I would come back. One

          3  day I will come back to that, to that same track.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right.

          5                 And Mr. Kritiviskiy, you also came to

          6  the United States from the USSR, and you came also

          7  with a master's degree. Now, you worked as a

          8  maintenance worker, et cetera, and you decided to go

          9  to City College. Did they at all look at your

         10  degrees from your country?

         11                 MR. KRITIVISKIY: Yes. When I came to

         12  City College, my degree was not ignored at all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

         14                 MR. KRITIVISKIY: I started my second

         15  degree in electrical engineering, and I received

         16  more than 50 evaluated credits.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: So it worked

         18  for you.

         19                 MR. KRITIVISKIY: Yes. And when I

         20  found that I liked computers, I wanted to -- I

         21  started my master's degree in computer science, and

         22  also my degree wasn't ignored at all. I was supposed

         23  just to take seven prerequisites.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Would you say

         25  that the fact that you came from the Organization
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          2  for New Americans that it might have helped?

          3                 MR. KRITIVISKIY: Yes. First of all, I

          4  started to take my English classes in NYANA.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes. I am

          6  familiar with that program.

          7                 MR. KRITIVISKIY: And they gave some

          8  support.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And they will

         10  support you and follow you through, whereas the lady

         11  next to you, Olivia, did not have that same

         12  experience because she did not have that kind of

         13  support with her.

         14                 See, if Olivia had that, perhaps, you

         15  know, they would have helped to get her an entre

         16  into the college and get a better evaluation of what

         17  she was doing in giving that language back-up. That

         18  is very good for us to hear.

         19                 Thank you very much, this panel. And

         20  congratulations to all of you, you are terrific.

         21                 Now the students who were sitting on

         22  the front row, are you pressed for time? You are?

         23  All of you, okay.

         24                 Why don't you all join us here then.

         25  The five of you, please take your seats there. Why
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          2  don't you quickly take your seats, and the people

          3  who have to leave, just kind of ease out so we can

          4  move on.

          5                 Okay, our first presenter, and would

          6  you please give your name.

          7                 MS. DOMINGUEZ: Yes. My name is Doris

          8  Dominguez. I am a nursing student at Hostos

          9  Community College.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Move the

         11  microphone closer to you.

         12                 After my family became US citizens,

         13  we returned to the Dominican Republic where I

         14  received my high school education and lived for 12

         15  years.

         16                 I had to return to New York in 1993

         17  because of personal problems and the need for

         18  self-actualization.

         19                 After enrolling in another college, I

         20  want to Hostos where I was listened to, that is

         21  through the admissions process, and where I was

         22  treated with respect.

         23                 I had heard the negative press about

         24  the college, but had been recommended its nursing

         25  program as one of the best. Much to my surprise, the
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          2  courses were not easy. Actually I found them very

          3  challenging. None more than the actual nursing

          4  courses.

          5                 Hostos offers a personal approach

          6  from admissions to graduation, and there is a

          7  genuine interest in the students' academic careers.

          8  I am currently vice president of the Gonzalez

          9  Academic Club, this is a club, the academic club

         10  that is for the nursing students.

         11                 From my classmates, I know that

         12  Hostos has an excellent English-as-a-second language

         13  program and the college level math is a challenge.

         14                 Hostos is a part of my neighborhood,

         15  Mott Haven in the South Bronx, a mostly Hispanic and

         16  now African-American immigrant community.

         17                 I am an example of the immigrant

         18  community of the Bronx and a proud student of Hostos

         19  Community College. As a closing statement, I would

         20  like to add that Hostos is a beacon of hope in the

         21  Bronx. It offers the opportunity for progress to

         22  those who would not otherwise be able to receive a

         23  higher education.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you.
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          2                 The next presenter, and make sure you

          3  give us your name so we can properly record you.

          4                 MS. SANCHEZ: Good morning. My name is

          5  Alexandra Sanchez. I came to New York from the

          6  Dominican Republic only three and one-half years

          7  ago, with no knowledge of the English language.

          8                 When I first enrolled at Hostos

          9  Community College in the fall of 1995, I was placed

         10  in the ESL intensive program, which is an

         11  accelerated course for especially select students.

         12                 While enrolled in this program I was

         13  able to complete four semesters of the regular ESL

         14  program in just two semesters.

         15                 My success in this program led to

         16  pass the CUNY writing examination in my first

         17  attempt. Thus, I graduated from Hostos in Fall 1997

         18  with an degree in art and a grade point average of

         19  3.94.

         20                 Also, I was the recipient of the

         21  National Hispanic Scholarship in 1997.

         22                 (Unable to ascertain due to dialect

         23  in language). As you all know, learning a second

         24  language is very hard. As immigrants in this

         25  country, we experience many obstacles in our attempt
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          2  to acquire second language skills.

          3                 However, challenges play a role in

          4  what ever thing we do in our life. At Hostos

          5  Community College, I have received the support,

          6  encouragement and high expectations of all of my

          7  professors and my classmates.

          8                 I would like to thank all of them for

          9  this great help in my learning process.

         10                 At present I am attending Baruch

         11  College, majoring in computer information systems.

         12  My major GPA is 4.0, and the other GPA is 3.21. I

         13  will be graduated in December 1999 with a BBA in

         14  computer information systems.

         15                 While achieving all of my goals, I

         16  also worked part-time as a peer advisor in their

         17  clinic advisement office at Hostos Community

         18  College.

         19                 My role is extremely serious and

         20  important because I advise the students and guide

         21  them in the educational process. I also help other

         22  students in writing and teaching them computer

         23  skills.

         24                 Finally, I will leave you with this

         25  idea. When we take a risk, all we have to do is to
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          2  embrace the challenge, to keep a positive mind to

          3  trust ourself and be persistent. Achieving a goal

          4  might be difficult but not impossible. I hope that

          5  Hostos Community College continues to help immigrant

          6  students like me, who come to this country with the

          7  desire of achieving the educational goals to improve

          8  their future.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MR. BAULA: Good morning. My name is

         13  Mardaceo Baula, I am a nursing student at Hostos

         14  Community College.

         15                 Dear friends, ladies and gentlemen,

         16  good morning. As one of the landed immigrants

         17  enrolled in this City University of New York, I have

         18  a very unique experience to tell.

         19                 I am telling you this not to gain

         20  sympathy, but to let you know that all of us have to

         21  persevere to reach our goal.

         22                 When I came to America in 1992, I was

         23  overwhelmed with mixed emotions. My financial

         24  condition was very bad and adjustment to methods of

         25  teaching here in the United States was overwhelming.
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          2                 After 28 years of healthy life,

          3  suddenly here I was afflicted with cerebral

          4  hemorrhage, operated on because of some inborn

          5  defect in the blood vessels of my brain.

          6                 I was totally devastated and lost my

          7  self confidence. I have already earned my MD degree

          8  from the Philippines, and finished my first year

          9  residency training in internal medicine at Bronx

         10  Lebanon Hospital Center.

         11                 However, I believe that when doors

         12  close on you, others will be open. So, here I am

         13  getting my second degree, an associate degree in

         14  nursing as Hostos community college, where I know I

         15  must go on.

         16                 Though the pattern of education here

         17  in the United States is similar to my home country

         18  in the Philippines, I found it even more challenging

         19  due to the fact that English is my second language.

         20  Hostos helped me boost my morale and given me the

         21  chance to relearn what I have forgotten. I just

         22  didn't mind waiting a few more years, besides

         23  practice does make perfect.

         24                 I have not yet totally recovered, but

         25  thanks for the guidance and support of my mentors
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          2  and counselor, they have helped me a great deal to

          3  cope with my learning disability. I am glad to say

          4  that in my opinion I am a testimony, a perfect

          5  example, if you will, that Hostos College knows no

          6  boundaries when it comes to education.

          7                 Finally, my experience may be

          8  different from yours, however I am sure we have the

          9  same ambitions in life, and all of us must persevere

         10  to reach our goals.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you very

         13  much, and good luck to you. You're going to make it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: You had

         15  indicated you completed your doctorate in the

         16  Philippines and you were actually a doctor there;

         17  did anyone guide you to the exam for the foreign

         18  medical graduates?

         19                 MR. BAULA: Actually, in order to get

         20  into the system actually of in the United States,

         21  actually you have to get to pass three exams and I

         22  did it myself. I did just to study and read and I

         23  was able to pass everything. But then after all the

         24  years of training I had the cerebral hemorrhage and

         25  that was in 1996. So I had to stop because of this
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          2  problem.

          3                 MR. TOLDEFANT: Good morning. My name

          4  is Daniel Toldefant, I feel very honored to be here

          5  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Could you speak

          7  more directly into the microphone. Pull it closer to

          8  you.

          9                 MR. TOLDEFANT: Good morning. My name

         10  is Daniel Toldefant. I feel very honored to be here

         11  this morning to hear my experience about extensive

         12  ESL program.

         13                 I came to America, March 1996 from

         14  West Africa, and I enrolled in Kings Borough

         15  Community College September 1996. I feel very

         16  honored, that ESL is a good program and uniquely

         17  designed to meet my need, the special need of

         18  immigrant students just like me (unable to discern

         19  due to dialect) encouraged me every minute I need.

         20  So, ESL came to rescue me from culture shock where I

         21  was in desperation, because I was placed in a class

         22  with students who were in the same situation, and we

         23  did a lot of interaction and working and we

         24  developed friendships which was very important for

         25  me to have. I have developed strong friendships
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          2  which is still, I think that is a problem if you

          3  don't have somebody to talk to.

          4                 ESL wasn't just a writing class, it

          5  was more than that. ESL have many well informed --

          6  well informed about American history, American

          7  government official economical system.

          8                 Through the books I read I learned

          9  the black American slavery experience, the

         10  Jewish-American experience in the east side,

         11  Manhattan. My classmates and I were exposed to a lot

         12  of outside activity, such as tour to Ellis Island.

         13  ESL helped me to overcome my language barrier, it

         14  helped me to know how to write, read, speak English.

         15  ESL helped me to excel in my college life and excel

         16  in college courses.

         17                 I don't know where I would be without

         18  this ESL, because of this program I was able to

         19  graduate with honors from Kings Borough Community

         20  College. That makes me feel good that I was an ESL

         21  program student.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you.

         24                 Now, did you participate in the

         25  Intensive Language Immersion Program?
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          2                 MR. TOLDEFANT: Yes. The program I was

          3  in was intensive ESL program.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes.

          5                 MR. TOLDEFANT: I may have to add one

          6  thing which came to my mind. Since I recognize that

          7  the help that was given to me by the school and my

          8  instructors, I was peer advisor in Kings Borough

          9  which I thought was a good idea to help students

         10  such as me who have to know the rules and regulation

         11  about the school and everything, and I was the peer

         12  advisor for students.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: It was

         15  interesting, because we do a little research before

         16  we pull together our panels and before we have these

         17  meetings, and to see that a larger percentage of the

         18  foreign-speaking students achieve higher levels

         19  scholastically than our students who are native born

         20  here, who grew up here. And I want to ask you, each

         21  of you give me the impression that you came to this

         22  country specifically to get an education; am I

         23  correct?

         24                 MR. TOLDEFANT: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That drive is
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          2  very, very important. It's what brought you through

          3  all kinds of hardships, and I just feel it is

          4  important to make note of that and sort of highlight

          5  that because that is very, very important.

          6                 Thank you very, very much.

          7                 We will next have our Language

          8  Immersion Program panel.

          9                 That is John Mogulescu, Marian

         10  Blaber, Melina Lamarche, Lester Raphael, Veruny

         11  Morillo.

         12                 We will be happy to take your

         13  testimony, if you have it in writing.

         14                 MR. MOGULESCU: Chair Marshall, I

         15  think I will start, and while I do have a prepared

         16  testimony, which is short, I think Vice Chancellor

         17  Mirrer spoke to a lot of the points about the

         18  Immersion Program.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay. We

         20  appreciate that. Thank you.

         21                 MR. MOGULESCU: Rather than give you a

         22  second overview, you have it for the record and I

         23  would rather hear directly from our students and two

         24  directors of the program because I believe you do

         25  know something about this program as well.
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          2                 So, with that I will have you proceed

          3  with the rest of the panel.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right, our

          5  first presenter.

          6                 MS. BLABER: Good morning. My name is

          7  Mimi Blaber and I am the Director of the CUNY

          8  English Language Immersion Program at LaGuardia

          9  Community College.

         10                 I am happy to be here this morning

         11  and give this testimony.

         12                 The CUNY English Language Program at

         13  LaGuardia has two goals for its students. First, the

         14  program provides English language instruction. And

         15  second, the program prepares students to enter CUNY

         16  colleges by teaching academic skill.

         17                 The Immersion Program incorporates

         18  innovative approaches to language learning, such as

         19  the use of learning communities, the use of

         20  authentic materials and the use of computer

         21  technology to enhance language acquisition. Classes

         22  are organized around themes, offering a foundation

         23  in academic vocabulary, English language rhetorical

         24  devices and academic inquiry.

         25                 Class themes at LaGuardia have
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          2  provided varied and challenging topics. In the last

          3  year, a sample of course titles has included,

          4  Controversial Issues in Urban Education, The Promise

          5  of Technology, Survey in America Cinema, and

          6  American Women Who Made A Difference.

          7                 Required reading for classes

          8  typically includes text, newspaper articles and

          9  Internet pieces.

         10                 A variety of fictions, such as Rag

         11  Time, Of Mice and Men, In The Time of the Butterfly,

         12  The Right of Passage, as well as non-fiction, such

         13  as, Questioning The Millennium, and Now Is Your

         14  Time, The African-American Struggle for Freedom,

         15  present thought provoking content for reading and

         16  writing and speaking assignments.

         17                 Assignment so rigorous, for example,

         18  each term students have met individual portfolios

         19  containing their essay writing. In a 12-week period,

         20  students typically submit 12 essay assignments which

         21  undergo two drafts and one final copy.

         22                 Promotion within the program is based

         23  on final exams that test reading, writing, listening

         24  and grammar. A highlight of the program is the use

         25  of its state-of-the-art computer lab.
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          2                 In addition to Internet searches and

          3  the use of E.mail, students learned about other

          4  computer applications, such as spread sheets to post

          5  survey results, presentation software to present

          6  oral reports, and web offering software to published

          7  student writing.

          8                 Both students and teachers report

          9  that computer competence facilitates learning

         10  communities and interest in research.

         11                 Finally, the Immersion program at

         12  LaGuardia also provides weekly meetings with the

         13  larger college community. Representatives from areas

         14  such as the Office of the Registrar, Financial Aid,

         15  Counseling and Freshmen Programs give students

         16  advice on how to matriculate into college and begin

         17  college level course work.

         18                 This additional component helps to

         19  ensure smooth transition from the Immersion Program

         20  into college study.

         21                 At this time, it is my pleasure to

         22  introduce you to a student who is currently studying

         23  at LaGuardia and who was a student in the Immersion

         24  Program, Melina Lamarche.

         25                 Melina will talk about her
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          2  experiences as a LaGuardia student.

          3                 MS. LAMARCHE: Good morning. My name

          4  is Melina Lamarche, and I am a study at LaGuardia

          5  Community College in Long Island City, Queens.

          6                 I am from the Dominican Republic, I

          7  am 19 years old. I have been in the United States

          8  for three years.

          9                 I came to the United States

         10  specifically to study for a college degree. I hope

         11  to work in advertising in the future.

         12                 I started as a student in the English

         13  Language Immersion Program, when I came to the

         14  program, I was placed in the beginning level and

         15  progressed to a more advanced level. Now I stayed in

         16  the program three terms.

         17                 The Language Immersion classes help

         18  me to realize that there were many people in the

         19  same situations as me. I identified with their

         20  goals, the sacrifices they were making to achieve

         21  them.

         22                 In fact, I remain friends with my

         23  former Immersion classmates, and we share our

         24  accomplishments. The Immersion Program introduced me

         25  to college, not only through teaching English
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          2  itself, but by giving me a college experience. I

          3  learned to do basic research and we visited the

          4  library to read about native Americans. I learned

          5  how to organize an essay. I learned how to express

          6  myself better by writing about personal experiences.

          7  I was exposed to new cultures and I learned new ways

          8  to listen and accept different points of view.

          9                 My major is fine arts. I have been

         10  taking courses all through liberal arts courses. My

         11  classes have been both interesting and challenging.

         12  I often feel that everyone else in my class speaks

         13  perfect English. I do my best but I sometimes feel

         14  that it is difficult to express myself in English.

         15                 So far none of my teachers have

         16  complained, or my college assignments seemed like

         17  double work for me. I have to make sure that my

         18  ideas are good and my English grammar is good.

         19                 I feel more comfortable and more in

         20  control writing than in speaking. My grades are

         21  mostly Bs, at times I see that even native speakers

         22  have trouble with grammar, so I try to concentrate

         23  on the concepts in my classes, the ideas in my

         24  classes. I think that it's the best way to learn and

         25  earn a good grade.
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          2                 Since I work part-time, I have to

          3  manage my time carefully, that means doing homework

          4  late at night. I have to do my job well and complete

          5  my college assignments.

          6                 One lesson from the Language

          7  Immersion Program that has helped me in my

          8  undergraduate classes is that it is okay to make

          9  mistakes. Mistakes are part of learning and we are

         10  all in college to learn. The teachers in the

         11  Language Immersion Program corrected our errors, but

         12  they were more concerned with our learning to

         13  improve on our willingness to take risks.

         14                 Recently my drawing class, I was

         15  asked to draw a person, I don't think drawing is my

         16  strongest talent. My drawing wasn't perfect but I

         17  was pleased that I went ahead and tried my best.

         18                 I have learned to free my mind of

         19  fear, I keep on trying.

         20                 Thank you for giving me the chance to

         21  speak to you about my experience as an immigrant

         22  student at LaGuardia Community College.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I want to thank

         24  you but I want to also commend you because your

         25  language is really very clear, and your diction and
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          2  everything were excellent, by gaining from the

          3  Language Immersion Program which you spent a year at

          4  the college without getting credit and paying $100,

          5  it certainly seemed to pay off.

          6                 Also, because now you are in a

          7  classroom with nearly everybody else speaking

          8  English as their first language and it really shows,

          9  it really does.

         10                 MS. LAMARCHE: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you.

         12                 The next presenter.

         13                 MR. RAPHAEL: Good morning. My name is

         14  Les Raphael, and I am the Language Immersion Program

         15  Director at York College, and also the director of

         16  the credit ESL program.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Pull that

         18  microphone closer to you.

         19                 MR. RAPHAEL: And also the director of

         20  the credit ESL program at York College.

         21                 I am very pleased to be here to talk

         22  to you about CUNY's ESL students and how the

         23  Language Immersion Program prepares a number of

         24  those students to be successful at the college.

         25                 My perspective is a unique one, since
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          2  I am directly involved with both the pre-college

          3  Language Immersion Preparation, and also the entry

          4  of those Language Immersion students into

          5  matriculated college programs.

          6                 The connection is a smooth and

          7  educationally sound one, where students who show

          8  that they are ready to start matriculation enter

          9  their chosen colleges.

         10                 The students enter with new placement

         11  test scores, and with evaluations from their

         12  Immersion Program instructors.

         13                 They are then placed into appropriate

         14  ESL or regular English classes, and are generally

         15  given full-time credit programs.

         16                 The academic preparation that

         17  students receive in the Language Immersion Program

         18  is intensive, and very much focused on the skills

         19  needed to be successful at college.

         20                 Much time is spent on academic

         21  writing, which is perhaps the most difficult

         22  academic skill to master. Students respond to

         23  readings, work on paraphrasing, summary writing and

         24  clinically analyze different kinds of texts. Of

         25  course they write essays on a variety of topics.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            101

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  Students also read a lot. They read novels, Animal

          3  Farm, To Kill a Mockingbird, the Great Gatsby, and

          4  many others. They read textbooks on American

          5  history, psychology, ecology, health and many other

          6  theme connected readings. All courses in the

          7  Language Immersion Program revolve around an

          8  academic-based theme, with English skills being

          9  taught in connection with those themes.

         10                 In addition to writing and reading,

         11  students work on listening and note-taking skills

         12  and on speech through academic presentation.

         13                 Another important element of Language

         14  Immersion instruction is the use of computers. At

         15  the York site, all classes meet five or six hours

         16  out of the 25 hours of instruction in the computer

         17  lab.

         18                 Students research topics on the

         19  Internet which leads to written and oral reports of

         20  projects.

         21                 In one project on human rights,

         22  students in one class researched national and

         23  international human rights violations, and presented

         24  the information on the web.

         25                 In another class students created
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          2  on-line psychology journal modeled after Psychology

          3  Today.

          4                 ESL students are important members of

          5  the fabric of all colleges and universities. They

          6  have been coached on language experiences and

          7  diversity that surely enrich an educational

          8  institution.

          9                 And the CUNY Language Immersion

         10  Program provides campus connected, academic focused

         11  instruction that enables ESL students who are

         12  generally speaking, not remedial in English, but

         13  rather learning a second language, allows those

         14  students to enter a CUNY college well prepared to

         15  study in a matriculated program.

         16                 I would like now to introduce you to

         17  a student who attended the Language Immersion

         18  Program at York in 1997 and is now studying in her

         19  fourth semester as a matriculated student at York

         20  College. Her name is Yeruny Morillo.

         21                 MS. MORILLO: Good morning. My name is

         22  Yeruny Morillo. I am a student at York College. I am

         23  20 years old and I come from the Dominican Republic.

         24  I came to the United States almost three years ago,

         25  after earning a high school diploma in the Dominican
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          2  Republic.

          3                 Six months after I arrived in New

          4  York, I decided that I wanted to attend college. So

          5  I applied to the City University of New York and was

          6  accepted at York College.

          7                 However, my English needed

          8  improvement, so I enrolled in the CUNY language

          9  Immersion Program to develop my English.

         10                 I learned so much in this program. I

         11  learned how to write an essay, working in

         12  organization and development, as well as English

         13  grammar and structure.

         14                 I studied African-American history

         15  and issues on worldwide human rights in my language

         16  Immersion classes.

         17                 I have read history textbooks, and

         18  others that connected to the theme that classes were

         19  studying, including Animal Farm, by George Orwell,

         20  In The Time of the Butterfly by Julia Alvarez, and

         21  short stories by Ernest Hemingway. I did research

         22  projects on the Internet, and from that research,

         23  made a presentation on prison abuses in Panama.

         24                 In fall 1997 I entered York College.

         25  True, I was a new student in the college, but I was
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          2  not new to the requirements and the demands of

          3  college work. The Language Immersion Program

          4  prepared me well for academic work in college. I

          5  have completed almost all of my general educational

          6  requirements, one of which was a three-credit

          7  African-American studies class.

          8                 I was familiar with much of the

          9  content because of the African-American theme we

         10  studied in the Language Immersion program.

         11                 I have taken college English I and

         12  II, have done research papers and critical analysis

         13  of readings in those classes and have received a B

         14  grade in both classes.

         15                 Again, it was the preparation from

         16  the Language Immersion Program that provided me the

         17  English skills to do well in those classes. I am now

         18  taking advanced courses in my major - psychology,

         19  and hope one day to be a child psychologist or a

         20  school psychologist. I have received A's and B's in

         21  all my classes at college, and with 45 credits

         22  completed, I have a 3.558 GPA.

         23                 Sometimes I feel really amazed that

         24  my English has come so far in less than three years.

         25  When I first came to New York, I was afraid to speak
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          2  to people in English about anything. When I decided

          3  to go to college, I was also afraid that I could not

          4  do it in this language that seemed difficult to me.

          5  But the Language Immersion Program taught me

          6  English, taught me research skills and study skills,

          7  and gave me the confidence to go to college.

          8                 Now as I start my fourth semester at

          9  York College, I know I will graduate and realize my

         10  dreams to be an educated and productive professional

         11  in this society.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I just have a

         13  couple of questions.

         14                 Obviously these two young ladies are

         15  very bright students. They have always had that.

         16  Now, they had to put off actually going directly

         17  into college for a year by getting into the Language

         18  Immersion Program. How do you determine a student

         19  who needs the Language Immersion Program and one who

         20  doesn't who can go directly into taking their

         21  courses?

         22                 MR. RAPHAEL: I can give you the

         23  perspective at York College, which I think is

         24  similar at most colleges.

         25                 The students are admitted into the
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          2  college and then take the placement tests, and based

          3  on the placement tests scores, in writing and

          4  reading particularly, and also the ESL advisor or

          5  the academic advisor who is deciding whether to

          6  place the student actually reads that written essay,

          7  so based on the reading of that written essay, the

          8  reading assessment test score, and a short

          9  interview. Each advisor at York, we talk to the

         10  student for about ten minutes and we get a profile

         11  and decide whether that student can actually begin

         12  the first level of English or ESL English at the

         13  college, and if they can and we think they can be

         14  successful, we place them in the college, in the

         15  matriculated program.

         16                 If not, then we advise them to go to

         17  the Language Immersion Program.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right.

         19                 Do you have many drop-outs from the

         20  Language Immersion Program? Or do you have any?

         21                 MR. MOGULESCU: Certainly we have

         22  drop-outs, and people leave for all kinds of

         23  different reasons. Some people leave because they

         24  received what they thought they needed to do with

         25  regard to language.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That student,

          3  the one who goes into the program and reaches a

          4  point where they think that they have enough to

          5  proceed on, what happens with them? Are they

          6  prohibited from entering into the University as a

          7  student? How does it work for that kind of student?

          8                 MR. MOGULESCU: The Language Immersion

          9  Program is a voluntary program.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Right.

         11                 MR. MOGULESCU: And the student can

         12  opt to go back. They have deferred their admissions

         13  into the particular college so they can opt to go

         14  back any time they wish. There is no requirement for

         15  a student to stay for a year, for example. Some

         16  students will stay just for a summer. Some students

         17  will stay for two cycles and some may stay for a

         18  year. That is done with the advisement of staff.

         19  Students can disagree with that advisement and

         20  always go back.

         21                 And some students may go on elsewhere

         22  and may leave CUNY as other students go, and some

         23  students may run into personal crises, as you know,

         24  as well.

         25                 But the program is voluntary, so that
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          2  the student can opt out whenever he or she wishes to

          3  do that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And if the

          5  student disagrees with the faculty on their

          6  capabilities, how did that work out?

          7                 MR. RAPHAEL: Well, at the end of a

          8  cycle a student is evaluated, they take the

          9  placement --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: How long is a

         11  cycle?

         12                 MR. RAPHAEL: At our site it is 15

         13  weeks. There is a spring 15 week, a fall 15 week and

         14  a summer six week. Those are most of the sites. I

         15  think two of the sites, LaGuardia have different

         16  regular college schedules, they have slightly

         17  different schedules.

         18                 But the end of that cycle, given the

         19  placement tests again, and based on their class

         20  work, they are evaluated and advised by the

         21  instructor and by myself whether they perhaps should

         22  go back to the college of not.

         23                 Of course they can, but if they have

         24  not reached the level, an English level proficiency

         25  that is the first level of English offered at the
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          2  college they have been allocated to, they really

          3  can't.

          4                 They have an option, they could stay

          5  in the Language Immersion Program, they could

          6  perhaps transfer, I mean they could be a York

          7  College student and decide to transfer to a

          8  community college. That doesn't happen much, but

          9  that is an option. But they can return if they have

         10  the English proficiency of the first level of the

         11  English course, or for that their allocated college.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Mr. Mogulescu,

         13  now, how will the resolution that the Board just

         14  passed affect the Language Immersion Program?

         15                 MR. MOGULESCU: Well, it doesn't

         16  really affect this program. Well, it does and it

         17  doesn't, let me say that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

         19                 MR. MOGULESCU: Students -- let's

         20  assume that --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I think the

         22  Board will really have to rely on the faculty,

         23  yourself and others on how to best implement their

         24  program.

         25                 MR. MOGULESCU: Well, let me just say,
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          2  let's assume a student is admitted in your college

          3  but has not passed one of the skills tests. They

          4  would be able to go into the Language Immersion

          5  Program for up to a year because it is considered a

          6  precollegiate program, and then hopefully pass the

          7  skills test and then go on to York College. So, the

          8  structure of the Language Immersion Program is not

          9  basically affected by the Board resolutions.

         10                 Other than, and this is with the

         11  caveat, that it could prevent them from perhaps

         12  meeting the -- because of the increased admission

         13  standards, meeting the academic standards in certain

         14  colleges, but the Immersion Program remained the

         15  same, and students hopefully will use this as a way

         16  to improve their skills, pass the skills tests, and

         17  then move on with their college career.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Some of the

         19  students that we discussed earlier come already with

         20  advanced degrees even. Do they go into the Language

         21  Immersion Program?

         22                 MR. RAPHAEL: It is possible, it

         23  really depends on their English level, their skills

         24  in English. I mean, they could have up to even a

         25  master's degree or certainly a BA degree from a
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          2  country, but not be proficient in English, and they

          3  may be placed.

          4                 MR. MOGULESCU: Although, the data

          5  seems to indicate that most people who go into

          6  Language Immersion Programs are lowest level

          7  speakers of English and who generally do not have

          8  those kinds of higher degrees from other countries.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: It would just

         10  seem to me that those students, because I have been

         11  on a panel where we even try to, people who are

         12  fully licensed from their countries, when they come

         13  to America, because of their language difficulty

         14  they can't get a license. I mean, they are really

         15  strapped. So, I mean, it seems to me that that is

         16  one area that we need to work on, because from what

         17  I hear of the Language Immersion Program, it's

         18  pretty comprehensive in education -- it is not only

         19  with language, you are giving them a really

         20  well-rounded education that first year, which is

         21  great. But perhaps some of the people who do have

         22  more advanced degrees don't need that much, you

         23  know?

         24                 Okay, thank you very much.

         25                 MR. RAPHAEL: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Our last panel,

          3  who we are anxiously looking forward to hearing

          4  from, is our Innovative ESL Programs for Degree

          5  Students, and that will be Marcia Babbitt and

          6  Rebecca Mlynarczyk. Thank you. Daniel Tweidel

          7  Deberham, Ms. Irenia, Nydia Flores. And Dean Carole

          8  Joseph, would you please join us on this one.

          9                 Is there anyone else here to testify

         10  today?

         11                 All right, ladies, you are the

         12  experts now. So we look forward to hearing from you

         13  and we will just start with our first speaker.

         14                 MS. BABBITT: Good afternoon, madame

         15  Chairperson, City Council members and guests. I am

         16  Marcia Babbitt and Rebecca Mlynarczyk, we have a

         17  student that we will introduce later. We are the

         18  directors of Kings Borough Community College's ESL

         19  program.

         20                 We are very happy to be here this

         21  morning and we thank you for the opportunity to talk

         22  to you about Kings Borough intensive ESL Program,

         23  which is a very successful program for beginning ESL

         24  college students and we are now going into our 9th

         25  semester, starting on Monday.
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          2                 Just a little bit of an overview. We

          3  will be following along with our handout.

          4                 Our Intensive Program was designed to

          5  accelerate the progress of first semester college

          6  ESL students, to get them quickly through the ESL

          7  courses, skipping levels sometimes if possible, and

          8  quickly into mainstream classes.

          9                 The program has enabled students to

         10  achieve much higher test rates than had been

         11  formerly possible in regular ESL courses. Many

         12  students skip entire ESL levels.

         13                 After passing regular Kings Borough

         14  assessments of reading and writing, no special

         15  privileges, the students and the content courses are

         16  regular content courses.

         17                 Students in the program are entering

         18  Freshmen and as I said, they must be in class from

         19  9:00 to 3:00, five days a week, while enrolled in

         20  the intensive program they take credit-bearing

         21  courses, eight hours of real credits, in courses

         22  which are required for graduation and areas which

         23  are required, and the courses include introduction

         24  to sociology, popular American history, psychology,

         25  speech and two student development one-credit
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          2  courses.

          3                 The elements that are responsible for

          4  our programs' outstanding results, and Rebecca will

          5  elaborate on these further along, include two

          6  additional class hours per week with the ESL

          7  instructor from 6:00 to 8:00, four hours with

          8  tutors, tutors also attend ESL classes, attend

          9  content courses and take notes, and there is also

         10  close collaboration amongst teachers who show the

         11  same group of students, and very, very importantly,

         12  the creation of a strong and active learning

         13  community among students in each program block.

         14                 Innovations for the fall: Until the

         15  past fall our program was optional for students, we

         16  tried to talk them into it, because they do have to

         17  be there from 9:00 to 3:00. But since it was so

         18  successful, our vice president and provost, Michael

         19  Zifrind, decided that we should mandate this

         20  program, requiring it for all in-coming full-time

         21  day ESL students. So we did that, we were a little

         22  nervous about it, but we did it, most students took

         23  it, and we went from three ESL to 70 ESL block last

         24  fall.

         25                 Also, let me say that when students
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          2  come in, our blocks start lower, intermediate, then

          3  we have intermediate, we have high intermediate

          4  levels in this program. Students come to us with

          5  low, low intermediate level, maybe beginner, high

          6  beginner, something like that, we refer them to the

          7  CUNY Language Immersion Program. We have one on our

          8  campus, we have a great deal of respect for this

          9  program, we have a good articulation with this

         10  program and we want the students to be there so that

         11  when they come to us they can handle the academic

         12  work, at least a low intermediate, intermediate

         13  level, and that is what we do.

         14                 And the Director Frank Milano isn't

         15  here, but we work together.

         16                 On page two of the handout I have --

         17  we have just a few sample schedules that you can

         18  look at at your leisure later. The first one is

         19  intermediate level, ESL 90 class, showing where all

         20  students are throughout the day. Second, and that is

         21  the one that I have been teaching. Rebecca teaches

         22  the next one which is high intermediate, ESL 91,

         23  showing where students are throughout a week also,

         24  and you will notice also SD classes, that is student

         25  development, very crucial for the students, and
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          2  Daniel mentioned something about that when he spoke.

          3                 I am now going on to page three of

          4  our handout, I am trying to get through very

          5  quickly. The goals of our program, we have four

          6  important major goals, the first of which is to

          7  accelerate ESL students acquisition of academic

          8  written and spoken English. Emphasis on the

          9  academic. They are in an academic environment.

         10                 Second, to allow ESL students to take

         11  credit-bearing courses in their very first semester

         12  of college study and they do take eight credit,

         13  eight full credits at every level.

         14                 Thirdly, to significantly improve the

         15  retention rate and graduation rate of ESL students.

         16                 And last, to encourage students'

         17  integration into all aspects of college life to

         18  build a strong foundation for the college experience

         19  not to be isolated, very important as well.

         20                 Result: We have two tables. I am

         21  going to talk about them briefly. Let me say before

         22  we look at our first table for a typical semester,

         23  that before this program and even during this

         24  program students who were not in the program, their

         25  pass rates were between 60 and 70 percent for ESL
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          2  forces.

          3                 So, let's look at the first table.

          4                 For the low intermediate level we had

          5  a normal 79 percent pass rate, with 50, almost 58

          6  percent of the students advancing to the next

          7  course, and 21 percent students skipping a level and

          8  accelerating.

          9                 Intermediate level, 88 percent pass

         10  rate, 53 percent of the students going to the next

         11  level, and 34 percent skipping the next level and

         12  accelerating.

         13                 High intermediate level, ESL 91, 87

         14  percent of the students pass rate. Almost 19 percent

         15  going to the next level and over 68 percent skipping

         16  a level. So that is very impressive. These results

         17  are excellent and results like this made the college

         18  realize and I must say we have a lot of

         19  administrative support. We are very fortunate at

         20  Kings Borough, made them realize that this program

         21  was important, a mandate for all and coming

         22  students.

         23                 Next is an interesting situation in

         24  the sociology class --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Can I ask you a
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          2  question? I am sorry.

          3                 MS. BABBITT: Sure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: At that point.

          5                 What happens to the students who

          6  don't go on to the next level?

          7                 MS. BABBITT: They repeat. But they

          8  would not be repeating in the intensive program, we

          9  only have a few repeaters, they would be repeating

         10  in one of the non-intensive. We also have

         11  content-based courses. They have to repeat --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right, but

         13  they would not be repeating in your program?

         14                 MS. BABBITT: Well, it's a possibility

         15  not really because we can't have a student just in

         16  the ESL without take the sociology or the history or

         17  the psychology because we are very much intertwined,

         18  as Rebecca will explain. You can't just be in ESL,

         19  you do whatever the content work is in that course,

         20  sociology, history, et cetera.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, I

         22  understand, but here we have 57.9 percent on the low

         23  intermediate level of students who don't advance on

         24  to the next level.

         25                 MS. BABBITT: No, no, no. Look at the
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          2  column, those are students who go right to the next

          3  level.

          4                 We have 88, 87 and 79 pass rate in

          5  all of the levels.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

          7                 MS. BABBITT: The second column are

          8  those who are moving up one level, and the third

          9  column are those who are skipping that altogether.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right.

         11                 MS. BABBITT: Okay? Sorry for not

         12  being clear about that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you. I am

         14  glad I stopped you.

         15                 MS. BABBITT: Me too, because we have

         16  really great results.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

         18                 MS. BABBITT: It is not 65 percent

         19  pass rate any longer for the program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right.

         21                 MS. BABBITT: Okay, we had one

         22  semester where in the sociology course half the

         23  students, 15 students were from our intensive

         24  program, the other 15 students were just students

         25  who just from the college at large were in ESL and
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          2  ESL alike, and the comparison of the results are

          3  very interesting.

          4                 On the left side we have the

          5  intensive ESL students, 93 percent of them passed.

          6  If you look over to the right side of the

          7  non-intensive students, only half passed, 50

          8  percent.

          9                 Going down to the third column, due

         10  to drops in the intensive program students, nobody

         11  dropped. Of the non-intensive program students, a

         12  lot of students, 19 percent dropped that sociology

         13  course and we have a very low drop rate, extremely

         14  low, maybe a student a semester, some semesters none

         15  at all. We have a lot of support our students say.

         16                 I am moving on to the next page, and

         17  actually, I am going to hand it over to Rebecca who

         18  is going to talk about the rest.

         19                 MS. MLYNARCZYK: Thank you. And we are

         20  very glad to be here. It was wonderful hearing the

         21  testimony from students earlier, and I think I will

         22  just speak here about the reasons for the success of

         23  this program. I think the students alluded to many

         24  of these things in their testimony. And I also

         25  wanted to point out, that while we were invited to
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          2  come here today, many other CUNY colleges are

          3  experimenting with similar programs.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, we are

          5  aware of that.

          6                 MS. MLYNARCZYK: Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Good.

          8                 MS. MLYNARCZYK: Okay, we think that

          9  there --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We are the

         11  best, that's why.

         12                 MS. MLYNARCZYK: We think so.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Or at least you

         14  are the forerunners, let me put it that way, because

         15  the other colleges have some good programs too.

         16                 MS. MLYNARCZYK: Right. I think in a

         17  sense ours may require more hours a week from the

         18  students and it may be the only one right now that

         19  is mandated for all students in their first

         20  semester. But we do feel the number of hours is

         21  important actually, and I will discuss these five

         22  factors, giving you some illustration so you see

         23  what we mean by some of this educational jargon.

         24                 The integration, first factor, the

         25  integration of support services, such as counseling
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          2  and tutoring.

          3                 On the schedule, as you noticed,

          4  there were two hours a week where students were in

          5  these SD or student development courses. Those are

          6  taught by our regular counseling staff, full-time

          7  instructors, and they really orient the students to

          8  the college. They show them where the gym is, they

          9  tell them that they have a right to use the gym, ESL

         10  students often don't know things like that. They

         11  become aware of where to go with various problems

         12  that they have. The Council has also helped them

         13  with planning for their academic programs, and even

         14  planning for career counseling, so it's a very --

         15  those two hours are really important.

         16                 Our students also spend many hours a

         17  week with the tutors, who attend a lot of the

         18  courses in the block, so that they become very

         19  important as liaisons. They know what is going on in

         20  history and in ESL and often the students may be

         21  more comfortable talking to the tutors, who are sort

         22  of in between a professor and a student and so they

         23  are very, very important as liaisons and that is one

         24  area where I our demonstrated support has really

         25  paid off because it costs money to provide all of
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          2  that tutoring, but we have been fortunate to have

          3  that.

          4                 The second aspect is the

          5  collaborative and interdisciplinary aspects of each

          6  program block. What this means is that the faculty

          7  worked together before the semester starts to very

          8  carefully coordinate the course work, so that it

          9  feels like a whole, everything is related.

         10                 For example, in my ESL course, which

         11  is linked with an American history course, the

         12  reading and writing that we do in ESL were closely

         13  related to what the students are studying in

         14  history. When the students are studying immigration

         15  to the US in the 19th century, they read in my

         16  class, the novel Jews without money buy my gold,

         17  which talks about immigrant life on the lower east

         18  side, so it is all reinforcing the history.

         19                 When they study the depression in

         20  history class, in my class they are reading Growing

         21  Up, by Russell Baker, and all of our writings relate

         22  to the history themes, so they get a lot of

         23  reinforcement.

         24                 The third factor is an active student

         25  centered pedagogy. I don't think our students would
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          2  survive if they had to sit through 25 hours of

          3  lectures each week, so that we really try to vary

          4  the pedagogy. Our students spend a lot of their

          5  class time working together in an active way. They

          6  may be working with a small group of students on a

          7  group problem solving activity, or they may be

          8  working with a partner exchanging essays and reading

          9  and commenting on the other student's essay, and

         10  this active approach has been adopted by some of the

         11  other professors who aren't language specialists

         12  actually, but it is especially important for ESL

         13  students, because they need to have time to be

         14  actually using English, not just sitting there

         15  listening to it, but speaking English as it relates

         16  to their academic course work.

         17                 The fourth factor is this

         18  content-based approach to language learning, which

         19  we have certainly alluded to earlier. Rather than, I

         20  think this is behind all of these CUNY initiatives

         21  of trying to improve the ESL teaching, is that we

         22  don't try to teach English in a vacuum anymore, but

         23  students in the ESL in the speech courses improve

         24  their English by using it to process information

         25  from the academic courses they are linked with.
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          2                 I have to say that the motivation of

          3  these credit-bearing courses is really intense. You

          4  would not believe how hard my students work to do

          5  well in that history class, and at the end of the

          6  semester they realize that their English levels have

          7  just gone way up, and they didn't even know they

          8  were working on English. They thought all of this

          9  had to do with history.

         10                 And just to give a couple of examples

         11  of this content-based approach. One semester when

         12  the students were studying the growth of the labor

         13  movement in the history class, their speech teacher

         14  asked them to do a project where they worked with a

         15  small group of students, they located a person who

         16  was active in a labor union, interviewed the person

         17  and then did an oral presentation about what they

         18  had learned.

         19                 In the ESL class there was a semester

         20  when students were studying immigration, and they

         21  did a research project in my course consulting many

         22  different sources and finally wrote a paper on the

         23  topic: how would my life have been different if I

         24  had emigrated to this country 100 years ago. That

         25  gave them a very interesting person perspective.
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          2                 Finally, a factor that we think is

          3  extremely important is the creation of strong

          4  academic learning communities, and our student

          5  Daniel, who was sitting at the end there, alluded to

          6  that, kept talking about his friends in the program,

          7  because they are all in their first semester of

          8  study and because they spend so many hours a week

          9  together, they form a very close bond with the other

         10  students and it's not just a social bond, it is very

         11  much an academic bond where they spend most of their

         12  time together discussing these courses, studying,

         13  going to the library and it is very important. It

         14  lasted for many years after they left our program

         15  and that makes a very good transition to our final

         16  speaker who is Catania Yurenina, who was one of our

         17  very first students in this program. She graduated

         18  from Kings Borough in June of 1998 with honors, and

         19  she is currently enrolled in Long Island University

         20  in a physical therapy program. So she is just going

         21  to get you a student perspective on the program.

         22                 MS. YURENINA: Good morning, ladies

         23  and gentlemen. My name is Catania Yurenina.

         24  Originally I came from Russia. I am a graduate from

         25  Kings Borough Community College, and I want to share
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          2  ideas about this program.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Pull the

          4  microphone a little closer to you, okay. Speak right

          5  directly into it. We want to hear it and we want to

          6  record what you say, it's very important.

          7                 MS. YURENINA: I came to America

          8  holding a bachelor's degree in nursing from Russia.

          9  When I applied to Kings Borough Community College, I

         10  even didn't know that such a program exists. I was

         11  accepted to the program absolutely by accident, by

         12  chance, and I am very, very grateful that this

         13  happened.

         14                 I would like to say that ESL

         15  intensive program is essential for immigrants who

         16  start their education in America. This program is

         17  offered to freshmen students during their first

         18  semester. Since students have all the classes

         19  together from 9:00 a.m. until 3:00 p.m., they do not

         20  feel isolated in a new big environment. They feel

         21  more like a family where everybody shares with each

         22  other, because they have the same problems and

         23  concerns in their new home land.

         24                 What I mean, that all of us came from

         25  different cultures, and such things that may be
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          2  essential for people who were born in America, feel

          3  very, very different for us. For example, how to go

          4  to restaurant, how to tip, how much to tip, where to

          5  shop, where to go. I don't know, everything is

          6  different. In that program we spend all the time

          7  together, everybody shares what they knew and

          8  actually that was a great, great help really. This

          9  program is an excellent introduction for college

         10  life. Student development class explains to the

         11  students their rights and obligations, different

         12  procedures, how to apply for financial aid, how to

         13  apply to four-year college, what are the future

         14  opportunities for students.

         15                 Also, they explain the specificity of

         16  the college life. Because people from different

         17  countries, they have different levels of education,

         18  they have different procedures, different styles in

         19  education.

         20                 For example, in my country, in

         21  Russia, we don't know what credit is. We have

         22  absolutely different system. When I was enrolled in

         23  Kings Borough, I didn't know that I have to get

         24  certain amount of credits to graduate, that I have

         25  to maintain a certain GPA in order to get into this
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          2  program or wanted to get. So, that, of course was an

          3  enormous help really.

          4                 Also, the sociology class introduces

          5  students to American history, to American culture,

          6  to moral and ethical beliefs, which I think is also

          7  essential to immigrants when they are in a new

          8  environment.

          9                 Speaking, reading and writing English

         10  six hours a day, five days a week is much more

         11  efficient than taking the regular ESL class just one

         12  hour three times a week. If you compare, it's a

         13  great difference.

         14                 The intensive ESL intermediate level

         15  program allowed me to complete the same amount of

         16  study that the students from the regular ESL classes

         17  complete in three or sometimes in four semesters.

         18                 That allows the students to start

         19  taking classes for their major and graduate faster.

         20  What I mean, that the policy of the Kings Borough

         21  Community College is the following: you cannot take

         22  advanced math, chemistry, biology, physics,

         23  literature and any other courses if you didn't

         24  complete the ESL course. If you are not in the

         25  regular English class, you cannot take courses that
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          2  may be essential for the major and essential for

          3  graduation. So, students who are in the regular ESL

          4  classes, they get stuck, they cannot take credit

          5  courses, they cannot complete their major and it

          6  takes them much, much longer to get their degree

          7  than the students from their intensive ESL Program.

          8                 I want to tell you a little bit about

          9  myself. When I arrived to America, I was afraid to

         10  speak English, even though I had some background.

         11  Actually I could speak English. But at the end of

         12  the intensive ESL program, I could express myself in

         13  any situation, even though my English wasn't

         14  perfect, but I wasn't afraid, because my

         15  instructors, my professors and the tutors, they

         16  encouraged us not only to talk in class, but they

         17  also encouraged us to take any opportunity to talk

         18  outside the college.

         19                 The word intensive really speaks of

         20  itself. That program is hard. It is not easy. To

         21  tell the truth I thought I would die at the end of

         22  the semester. Really. Really. But I am very, very

         23  grateful. That program leaves you an idea what is

         24  college level study, it is not like a high school

         25  and actually what an American College study looks

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            131

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  like.

          3                 Also, I got good habits and

          4  techniques to how to take notes, how to read books,

          5  how to take the most important parts of the passage,

          6  how to do everything. That is helping not only

          7  English, regular English classes and leadership

          8  classes that I was taking later, but also in any,

          9  any different subjects that I was taking. This is

         10  essential. How to take notes is very, very

         11  important, and then how to take literate notes, that

         12  you can read them later.

         13                 After actually when I was in that

         14  college, when I finished that intensive ESL program,

         15  in the middle of my education, I was able to work as

         16  a tutor. I, an ESL student, was teaching Americans

         17  who were born there, I was tutoring biology and

         18  physiology, and I was very proud of myself.

         19                 I also took the TOEFL test, the test

         20  of English as a foreign language. I passed it with a

         21  grade of 600, while the grade of 550 is a

         22  requirement. And this is not only my achievements,

         23  50 percent of it is the ESL intensive program where

         24  I had gotten the basics for learning, learning,

         25  writing, reading and understanding English.
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          2                 I graduated from Kings Borough

          3  Community College with honors. I got the PT award, I

          4  am in physical therapy now. PT, when I was in Kings

          5  Borough Community College Dean's List, the national

          6  Dean's List, but I think I would never succeed if I

          7  wouldn't get that initial push from ESL intensive

          8  program.

          9                 As we all know, the United States is

         10  a country of great opportunity. I am personally very

         11  grateful to America, particularly for the CUNY

         12  system, for the opportunity and support that I

         13  received. I do not want, and that is why I don't

         14  want the other fellow immigrants to be deprived of

         15  that opportunity. This program is a big push for

         16  immigrants to start their education. Eventually it

         17  will be beneficial to both immigrant students and to

         18  the state. Because students from that ESL intensive

         19  program will graduate faster than the other

         20  students, they will find jobs, they will pay taxes

         21  and work for the benefit of the American society.

         22                 This is the goal for everyone. This

         23  is why I think the ESL intensive program has to be

         24  supported and protected.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you.

          3                 DR. JOSEPH: Good afternoon.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Good afternoon.

          5                 DR. JOSEPH: My students went before

          6  me, I am from Hostos Community College.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you for

          8  your patience with that.

          9                 DR. JOSEPH: Yes. Dr. Deloris

         10  Fernandez, who is our interim president, is out of

         11  town, so I, Carole Berotte Joseph, I am the Acting

         12  Dean of Faculty and Academic Affairs, so I am

         13  representing Hostos.

         14                 Most community colleges, community

         15  college students are very busy people who juggle

         16  work, family, community responsibilities, in

         17  addition to enrollment. Many of our students come

         18  into our college expecting more instructional

         19  delivery options and challenge us to offer various

         20  learning centered options and opportunities.

         21                 Many of our students are older

         22  adults. The average age of our students at Hostos is

         23  27. They return to school after a long hiatus away

         24  from school and doing the remediation.

         25                 In order for our students to make
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          2  progress out of remediation, a multiplicity of

          3  pedagogies included but not limited to, accelerated

          4  learning, self-paced individual courses, evening

          5  courses, telecourses, on-line courses, flex term,

          6  contracts study, intensive, intercession and summer

          7  workshops, weekend and midterm courses, as well as

          8  other task-based approaches, and our traditional

          9  college courses are needed.

         10                 These alternative and innovative

         11  approaches are specific ways that we at the

         12  community colleges can utilize to meet the

         13  educational needs of our students while promoting

         14  academic excellence.

         15                 An analysis of the population needing

         16  English as a second language classes over a period

         17  of three semesters, from Spring '96 to Spring '98,

         18  showed that an average of 52 percent of our student

         19  body placed at one of our four ESL levels upon

         20  entry.

         21                 You have already heard from our

         22  students, all of whom were English language

         23  learners.

         24                 At E.M. De Hostos Community College,

         25  during three weeks in June 1998 and part of the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            135

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  month of August 1998, an intensive dialogue was

          3  initiated as one of the first collegewide

          4  initiatives of the new administration.

          5                 Close to 200 members of the college

          6  community participated. All of the stakeholders in

          7  the college community were active participants in

          8  this process. The impetus for this massive

          9  participation in the dialogue was that the

         10  institution, as you know, had heretofore been in the

         11  lime light. We had not been able to formulate a

         12  fully articulated bilingual program to meet the

         13  needs of our heterogeneous adult student population

         14  for which it was founded. The pilot Academic

         15  Language Corridors, ALCs as we have called them,

         16  grew out of this intensive analysis and dialogue and

         17  are now part of our attempt to fully articulate and

         18  implement the bilingual mission for dual language

         19  model.

         20                 There are four academic language

         21  corridors, and corridor one is dual language where

         22  our students begin taking courses in Spanish, and

         23  then also take ESL classes, as similar to the Kings

         24  Borough Community College Program, they also take a

         25  number of credits that are credit-bearing courses.
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          2  And those courses are also linked so the professors

          3  work together in that particular corridor.

          4                 Corridor two is Spanish Immersion.

          5  And Spanish Immersion is geared to the monolingual

          6  English-speaking students that we have at Hostos who

          7  are interested in learning Spanish as a second

          8  language.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I have to go

         10  there.

         11                 DR. JOSEPH: Yes, we would love to

         12  have you.

         13                 Corridor three is our LINK courses

         14  project, where some of the students are not in the

         15  full ESL corridor, but take peer courses. So they

         16  will take sociology with an ESL or psychology with

         17  an ESL.

         18                 Corridor four is English/English,

         19  focusing on critical thinking.

         20                 I have some charts that I have

         21  attached for you and I will give you the handout on

         22  our way out.

         23                 As part of our Renaissance --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Excuse me. Do

         25  you have the handout?
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          2                 DR. JOSEPH: I actually do --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Will the

          4  Sergeant-At-Arms distribute those for us.

          5                 We like to follow them.

          6                 DR. JOSEPH: As you know, since Dr.

          7  Deloris Fernandez has been appointed, we have begun

          8  a renaissance at Hostos. And as part of our

          9  Renaissance, in November 1998 it was proposed as the

         10  new Department be established to address the needs

         11  of our second language adult learners by providing

         12  various options to them.

         13                 So, all four academic language

         14  corridors are housed in this new Language and

         15  Cognition Department which was recently approved by

         16  the Board of Trustees on January 25th of this year.

         17                 We envision a process of several

         18  phases, as you will see in the charts that are

         19  attached, we have planned for a five-year period,

         20  from 1998 to 2003. An integral component of this

         21  model will be research-based. So that these

         22  innovative changes will be documented, analyzed and

         23  reviewed. Because the Academic Language Corridors

         24  are relatively new, this is only our second

         25  semester, we will use our research fundings to
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          2  improve the corridors, as well as to sharpen the

          3  program evaluation, as we implement the various

          4  phases.

          5                 Our decisions will be informed by a

          6  data analysis component, one which we have not had

          7  in the past. A team of outside experts has been

          8  identified, various consultants will work with the

          9  faculty on a host of research projects. We have also

         10  begun planning for collaborative research projects

         11  with Dr. Ricardo Dege, at the CUNY Graduate Center's

         12  research institute for the study of language in

         13  urban society.

         14                 The implementation of the pilot

         15  academic language corridors began in the fall of

         16  1998, which is phase one in the charts that you

         17  have. We have already begun to look at student

         18  profiles, and we will be analyzing their performance

         19  and the dual language corridor in their totality.

         20                 This will help us to better remove

         21  them out of remediation as they progress into

         22  accelerated courses.

         23                 As of February 16th, 1999, we, too,

         24  have also begun to offer another option in the ESL

         25  sequence. Hostos is also now a CUNY language
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          2  Immersion site and many students have opted for that

          3  program. We are currently offering three day classes

          4  and two evening classes and are serving a total of

          5  111 students at three levels, a low, a high

          6  beginning and intermediate.

          7                 Our outcomes, by the Year 2003,

          8  Hostos Community College will have established a

          9  fully articulated dual language model in all of our

         10  degree programs. The expected outcome will be the

         11  preparation of competent, bi-literate and fully

         12  bilingual graduates in the various programs we

         13  offer, ensuring either their successful pursuit of

         14  higher education and/or access to meaningful and

         15  well paid employment.

         16                 Improvements are expected in all of

         17  the conventional measures of quality; that is,

         18  student outcomes, teaching effectiveness and

         19  scholarship.

         20                 We will then be well on our way to

         21  fulfilling the vision of the new administration,

         22  which is to make E.M. De Hostos Community College a

         23  school of excellence and the premiere dual language

         24  community college in the City, state and nation by

         25  fully implementing the dual language model.
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          2                 The New Department will enable our

          3  faculty to teach our adult learners of English more

          4  effectively than we have done in the past. Because

          5  the independent structure of the Department fosters

          6  focused planning and curriculum development, not

          7  only in the area of ESL, but also with English and

          8  other content faculty, thus fostering the use of

          9  English in other academic context through the

         10  various disciplines.

         11                 The new feature highlighted in this

         12  model involved joint planning between faculty for

         13  maximum use of English and for collaboration,

         14  professional personal development through team work.

         15                 English language learners will not

         16  only learn English, but also learn in English. The

         17  same can be said about monolingual English speakers

         18  who select the Spanish Immersion option.

         19                 Spanish as a second language learners

         20  will not only learn Spanish, but will learn in

         21  Spanish. We believe that this is a true dual

         22  language program.

         23                 Of course, in order to implement such

         24  a program, resources are needed, for comprehensive,

         25  instructional and professional development, and we
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          2  hope that we will be able to get additional funding

          3  from CUNY, through the efforts of the Council and

          4  our trustees.

          5                 The support services that the

          6  literature and our experiences tell us make a

          7  difference will also need to be reinforced.

          8                 At present there are 20 full-time

          9  faculty in this new Department, so we are utilizing

         10  many adjuncts. We need to recruit and hire

         11  credentialed full-time faculty to make this plan

         12  work. We need at least ten new full-time faculty

         13  lines and two new counseling lines, as well as a

         14  learning center director in order to provide the

         15  necessary support systems for our students.

         16                 In closing, I would like to say that

         17  I am confident that this new department and the

         18  overall plan will work to help Hostos succeed, it

         19  will work for our students because we have

         20  identified the elements necessary for success. If we

         21  are to move Hostos ahead, we must support that

         22  effort to make it a reality. Hostos must stay on the

         23  road to excellence, we hope that you will help us to

         24  realize that transformation at Hostos for the good

         25  of the City, the State and the nation.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 The next presenter.

          6                 MS. FLORES: Good afternoon.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Good afternoon.

          8                 MS. FLORES: My name is Nydia Flores,

          9  I am the Director of the ESL Resource Center at John

         10  Jay College of Criminal Justice. I am happy to be

         11  here to share some ideas. I will be very brief, I am

         12  the last one on the agenda today. And at the same

         13  time, I would like to give you a perspective of the

         14  immigrant profile we have at John Jay, the language

         15  background, and talk a little bit about the

         16  supplementary instruction.

         17                 Shoko Kokuban came to my office in

         18  1993 as a graduate from Seattle, Washington High

         19  School where she served as an exchange student.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: One minute. Do

         21  we have your testimony?

         22                 MS. FLORES: Yes. Yes, Ma'am.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you.

         24  Continue.

         25                 MS. FLORES: Shoko Kokuban came as an
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          2  exchange student for one year from a high school in

          3  Seattle to New York City to come to John Jay to

          4  study criminal justice. She never went back to her

          5  native Japan. She came to John Jay basically to

          6  study either forensic psychology, forensic science

          7  or either criminal justice, after her English

          8  language, second language training and her tutorials

          9  were completed, I referred her to an internship

         10  program where she landed the position assisting a

         11  doctor who does case studies for the criminally

         12  insane.

         13                 The end of my story, she was hired

         14  and she works with this doctor at Kirby and she

         15  still works with the criminally insane.

         16                 Reynaldo Fonseca, a native from

         17  Puerto Rico, came to my office as a college

         18  work-study student. His proficiency in English was

         19  very low. And he also took a number of hours of

         20  tutoring. During his college career, I noticed that

         21  he was very driven to excel and I recommended him to

         22  also an internship program. He received a 3.5

         23  average and his English-as-a-second-language courses

         24  continued throughout the intensive program.

         25  Reynaldo's internship led him to perform tests to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            144

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  determine drug levels on John Doe's who had been in

          3  our City morgue. That was his internship. Today he

          4  is an assistant to our Medical Examiner in the City

          5  of New York.

          6                 Our valedictorian last year was from

          7  Poland, an ESL student, an immigrant who had been in

          8  this country for just a few years. When Grazyna

          9  addressed the graduates, she reminded the audience

         10  about the support she received which made language

         11  learning challenging and exciting. Grazyna was a

         12  wife and a mother of two children.

         13                 Our immigrant students come from many

         14  language backgrounds. In 1992, the ESL resource

         15  center was established with approximately -- it was

         16  successful to approximately tutor seven language

         17  backgrounds from 1997 to 1998, however that changed

         18  drastically. The center served 26 different language

         19  backgrounds. The largest group of ESL students at

         20  John Jay is Spanish speaking: Dominican, Colombian,

         21  Guatemalan, Ecuadorian. And the second largest group

         22  is Russian-speaking, for whom the most part Russian

         23  is a second language, we also have them speaking

         24  Uzbek and Ukraine.  At John Jay we also have

         25  students who graduated from our public schools who
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          2  life in speech communities where English is not

          3  spoken. These students, both the recent immigrants

          4  and no-so-recent immigrants, constitute the ESL

          5  population at John Jay College.

          6                 How long have our students been in

          7  the United States? Well, particularly at John Jay,

          8  those who are registered in ESL courses have been in

          9  this country very little. Thirty percent of our

         10  population have been here only one year, 27 percent

         11  has been here one to three years, 28 percent has

         12  been here four to six years, 15 percent of our

         13  students arrived here more than six years ago.

         14                 They have special needs and at John

         15  Jay College we believe our new immigrant students do

         16  well academically if we provide them with

         17  interactive, personal interactive training and

         18  setting, which can only be provided in addition to

         19  their class work in the context of tutoring centers,

         20  since classes are usually large.

         21                 The personal context allows them to

         22  not only develop linguistically but also to deal

         23  with every day issues of college life. The courses

         24  at John Jay College are writing courses, they were

         25  established in 1992, they are two-tiered, it's a
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          2  two-tiered program and much like Kings Borough

          3  Community College, they are content-based.

          4                 The academic writing courses that we

          5  have at the highest level, the course is

          6  criminology, based on criminology 101, and our

          7  second course is sociology based sociology 101. And

          8  the majority of our in-coming students who come to

          9  John Jay we must remember come to study police

         10  studies, police science, criminal justice,

         11  criminology, criminal justice administration. And

         12  that is one of the reasons why our writing courses

         13  are content-based in those two areas. We are

         14  basically preparing them for their majors and also

         15  to be marketable employees for the City of New York.

         16                 In order to meet our ESL students'

         17  need, the resource center, we provide appointments,

         18  we provide tutoring on appointment basis. Our

         19  workshops require that students register and reserve

         20  a seat and use all of our interactive technology,

         21  which is flexible, they can walk in and receive

         22  tutoring with that.

         23                 In 1992 we didn't have any computers

         24  and any technology at the center, yet in 1996 and

         25  '97 the center acquired computers with state
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          2  funding, and a variety of private grants and

          3  donations.

          4                 With these funds we purchased

          5  software, grammar and academic writing essentials

          6  for students to do independent work. In order to

          7  perceive how driven our young immigrant students

          8  are, I would like to comment that the donations that

          9  we receive were from the student government body and

         10  from the alumni association who believe in

         11  themselves and in their upcoming generation of young

         12  professionals.

         13                 Our highly driven students, ESL

         14  students, consumed over 4,500 hours of tutorial

         15  instruction during the academic year. The

         16  supplementary instruction is linked to classroom

         17  instruction, and they are required to have nine to

         18  12 hours of tutoring but many receive 20 to 30.

         19                 They receive instruction in areas

         20  such as the techniques and punctuation, how do

         21  develop a cohesive essay, et cetera. We offer them

         22  computer assisted language learning, and that is, we

         23  have over 1,000 hours of grammar exercises and as

         24  one student mentioned in an unsolicited comment this

         25  week, that I managed to lift and throw in here, "I
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          2  think we should continue with this program because

          3  it helps immigrants who come from another country to

          4  write English."

          5                 We have developed our own interactive

          6  software at the center which focuses on the

          7  vocabulary development and the language of

          8  sociology, and criminology. It is the first of its

          9  kind in CUNY and probably in the nation. We also

         10  teach students how to use the Internet as a language

         11  resource tool, since we are linked to multiple

         12  sites, both private and public institutions of

         13  higher education connect with us and we connect to

         14  them.

         15                 In sum, the multiple instructional

         16  supportive service is offered and provided to our

         17  new CUNY students, are probably the most important

         18  formats that they need regarding their development

         19  of English language skills and also with regards to

         20  their course work.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: As I listened

         23  to the testimony, and also the briefing that our

         24  staff has prepared for us, it seems that you have

         25  developed two major inroads for ESL students to come
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          2  into the University; am I correct? Aside from the

          3  Immersion and the Intensive Program, how else can a

          4  student who needs ESL enter into the University? And

          5  have you found this to be the best way?

          6                 DR. JOSEPH: Well, at Hostos they come

          7  in because we have a bilingual mission, and so they

          8  don't necessarily have to go into an intensive, we

          9  have an intensive program, we have Clip, and we also

         10  have the ESL program that is in there consisting a

         11  series of four courses, and the opportunities that

         12  they have to take courses in their native language

         13  as they continue I think is excellent, because many

         14  people who come, for example, the students we heard

         15  from today, who have studied in their languages and

         16  may have even been professionals and then come to

         17  this country and have to wait to take English only

         18  until they are able and proficient enough than to go

         19  into a career, I think it is very wise things.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: So, at Hostos

         21  you can just come in and enter but you still are

         22  requiring them to take four courses in English?

         23                 DR. JOSEPH: Yes. Depending on where

         24  they place. If they have had some English, then they

         25  may place higher. But if they are coming in with
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          2  absolutely no English, then they would take the

          3  first course.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I was also

          5  interested, each of you comes basically except for

          6  John Jay, from a community college, even John Jay

          7  has some sort of arrangement, I would like to know

          8  more about also what happens on the four-year

          9  college level. Are any of you familiar with that?

         10                 MS. FLORES:  Well, at John Jay we do

         11  have an associate degree program and we have a BA

         12  program. Our ESL students for the most part come

         13  into the four-year programs. I don't know now with

         14  the shift in the policies whether that is going to

         15  change for the ESL population in --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: How has it

         17  worked up until now?

         18                 MS. FLORES: Up until now most of our

         19  students are majors in Criminal Justice, Criminal

         20  Justice Administration and Police Science. Many of

         21  our students who may have chosen to enter through an

         22  associate degree program end up graduating with a

         23  BA. We have very few students who finish and stop at

         24  that point, mostly all go to the four-year program,

         25  and they go to graduate school also.
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          2                 So we do not consider this a

          3  dichotomy in the structure of the ESL program. We

          4  don't feel it is bindery function of our services

          5  that we have to serve this student or that. We serve

          6  the whole college, and irrespective of whether they

          7  are in an AA program or BA program, we have to

          8  provide them with all the support services as

          9  possible.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right.

         11                 DR. JOSEPH: Prior to going to Hostos

         12  I was at City College of New York, and before we had

         13  the Clip Program, for example, the Immersion, there

         14  was an ESL program there. I know that the senior

         15  colleges have been phasing out their ESL program, so

         16  that I suspect that most of the senior college

         17  students will probably have to come either to the

         18  community colleges or to Clip in order to attain

         19  their ESL skills and then transfer back to the

         20  senior colleges.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, all of

         22  this, of course, is a rising concern with the new

         23  resolution because it is going to really -- the

         24  programs, and I always talk about the mission of the

         25  community colleges, and how important and sacred
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          2  that is that we really want that process to keep

          3  going, we are discovering talent and genius that we

          4  really need in our City and I am very concerned

          5  about the lack of remediation on the four-year

          6  college level.

          7                 Now, constantly the Board of

          8  Trustees, particularly some of the members who favor

          9  it, are saying, well, don't worry ESL and Seek

         10  students are, you know, they are exempt from this,

         11  but we have not really seen that clearly spelled

         12  out. You see, even today we had the Vice Chancellor

         13  kind of still struggling with the idea that they are

         14  trying to work it out because there is a limit to

         15  how much you can do and I happen to know, you know,

         16  I am chair of this Committee, your economics and

         17  your physical plant and some of the problems that

         18  you have, already with the full schedule, an

         19  overloaded schedule.

         20                 MS. FLORES: We did refer more

         21  students to the Borough of Manhattan Community

         22  College in this term. This is our first semester

         23  that we witnessed through the resolutions and also

         24  through Clip we did have a higher percentage of

         25  referrals, but I don't think in January of 1999 we
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          2  can actually speculate what is going to happen in

          3  the fall until the processing center has all of

          4  these administrative paperwork settled and where

          5  they are referring the allocations. Right now I

          6  cannot say anything.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We are going to

          8  be relying on you who are out there in the field to

          9  help us, to guide us. We are really hoping that

         10  there will be a reversal of this proposal because it

         11  doesn't fit in with all of the things that you are

         12  teaching. You are telling us about the City

         13  University, you carefully planned it out, this is

         14  sort of imposed, superimposed on the structure and

         15  we now have to deal with damage control, and it's a

         16  shame that that should be coming from your own Board

         17  of Directors. I am not asking you to comment on

         18  that.

         19                 MS. BABBITT: Yes, I wanted to comment

         20  on that.

         21                 I came to Kings Borough fairly

         22  recently, before that I worked for 18 years as an

         23  adjunct, first in Brooklyn and then in Hunter

         24  College, so I did teach ESL and other four-year

         25  colleges.
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          2                 Then after I was at Kings Borough, in

          3  the Spring of '97, the Office of Academic Affairs

          4  had a major ESL grant program where the campuses

          5  competed for grant money ESL programs and many of

          6  the four-year colleges were awarded grants, and many

          7  of these grants had to deal with content-based

          8  instruction linked courses, they are still trying to

          9  keep those courses going, however their enrollments

         10  have fallen off, have dropped because of the

         11  changes. Many of the campuses had to reduce the

         12  number of ESL courses that they offer. So, they have

         13  had some good programs, they have put a lot of

         14  thought into it, but as Nydia said, we don't know

         15  what they will see in the fall or starting next

         16  January, I guess. But a lot of thought has been

         17  done, a lot of programs are in place.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I know that

         19  when I went to Queens College many of the foreign

         20  students had clubs, in fact it was one of the

         21  questions I really wanted to ask earlier. Do you

         22  have such clubs at your campuses? And what role do

         23  they play? Mostly social and supportive of one

         24  another?

         25                 Because you all seem to have good
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          2  solid, particularly with the programs that you are

          3  discussing, really as part of the University is a

          4  whole support team for the students.

          5                 DR. JOSEPH: Well, there are clubs and

          6  we have advised the students through leadership

          7  seminars that we have done for them to try to make

          8  them less social and party types, and actually some

          9  of our clubs are now developing programs to support

         10  students, to tutor students, to help expand.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Interesting.

         12                 DR. JOSEPH: And so we have -- well,

         13  not a demand, but a request right now from the

         14  student government asking how they can pay, utilize

         15  their money to pay tutors to help students get

         16  through that, see what test, so we are exploring

         17  that possibility right now with them in terms of the

         18  legalities of actually paying tutors, utilizing

         19  student money.

         20                 So, the focus has changed, because

         21  the real focus on education, I think the fact that

         22  we have so many adults on our campuses, even though

         23  we still have a lot of the ethic clubs and clubs in

         24  different areas, but the focus of the clubs have

         25  changed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, one of

          3  the things that we have learned here, my colleagues

          4  and I, is that the urban student in our City

          5  University at this point is a very serious student,

          6  one who is really, you know, we sort of lost that

          7  collegiate atmosphere for the young and free, like

          8  my kids were, it's more like I was as a student of

          9  the University. And that sort of changes the focus,

         10  particularly with the clubs, whereas before they

         11  were socializing, which is important, but they see

         12  the need to do really intensive work as far as the

         13  academic direction is concerned.

         14                 I want to thank you very, very much.

         15                 MS. FLORES: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you very,

         17  very much. Our students are in good hands. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 1:30 p.m.)
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         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 26th day of February 1999.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            158

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410
